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Study Session
April 28, 2020
The Board of County Commissioners will be attending this meeting telephonically. The public is
invited to listen to the study sessions by calling 1-855-436-3656. The Board of County Commissioners
may go into executive session as necessary to receive legal advice or discuss other confidential
matters during the updates.
The Arapahoe County Board of County Commissioners typically holds weekly Study Sessions on Monday and
Tuesday. Study Sessions (except for Executive Sessions) are open to the public and items for discussion are
included on this agenda. Agendas (except for Executive Sessions agendas) are available through the
Commissioners’ Office or through the County’s web site at www.arapahoegov.com. Please note that the Board
may discuss any topic relevant to County business, whether or not the topic has been specifically noticed on
this agenda. In particular, the Board typically schedules time each Monday under “Committee Updates” to
discuss a wide range of topics. In addition, the Board may alter the times of the meetings throughout the day,
or cancel or reschedule noticed meetings. Questions about this agenda? Contact the Commissioners’ Office at
303-795-4630 or by e-mail at commissioners@arapahoegov.com

Study Session Topics
11:00 A.M. *Strategic Planning Discussion
Board of County Commissioners
1:00 P.M. *Developmental Pathways Annual Mill Levy Review
Update to the Board of the Annual Mill Levy Review for Developmental Pathways
Request: Information/Direction
Melanie Worley, CEO, Developmental Pathways
Tara Foristal, Developmental Pathways
Natalie Coulter, Developmental Pathways
Selina Griggs, Developmental Pathways
Documents:
DEVELOPMENTAL PATHWAYS, INC. 2019 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - PUBLISHED.PDF
DP 2019 AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES REPORT - PUBLISHED.PDF
FULLY EXECUTED 2019 AGREEMENT.PDF
FY19 MILL LEVY REPORT_FINAL.PDF
SPEND BY SERVICE AREA.PDF
COMMUNITY OUTREACH SNAPSHOT.PDF
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA.DOCX
DOC_REVENUE_STUDY_SESSION_20200428.XLSX
DOC_ORGANIZATION_SURVEYS_AND_AUDITS_FY19_FINAL_STUDY_SESSION_20200428.PDF
Break
2:30 P.M. *Temporary No Parking Ordinance

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA.DOCX
DOC_REVENUE_STUDY_SESSION_20200428.XLSX
DOC_ORGANIZATION_SURVEYS_AND_AUDITS_FY19_FINAL_STUDY_SESSION_20200428.PDF
Break
2:30 P.M. *Temporary No Parking Ordinance
Discussion of a request for direction on the creation of a Temporary No Parking Ordinance by the Board
of County Commissioners that can be implemented to assist in the maintenance and construction of
transportation related infrastructure within the Right of Way
Request: Information/Direction
James Katzer, Division Manager, Public Works and Development
Bryan Weimer, Director, Public Works and Development
Keith Ashby, Purchasing Manager, Finance
Robert Hill, Senior Assistant County Attorney
Documents:
BRS FOR TEMP NO PARKING SIGNED.PDF
SOP.TEMPNOPARKING FINAL 10-15-19.PDF
TEMPORARY NO PARK ORDINANCE DRAFT.V2 2-28-20.PDF
PPT_TEMPORARY_NO_PARKING_STUDY_SESSION_20200428.PDF
3:00 P.M. *Allocation Of Community Development Block Grant COVID-19 Funds
Discussion of a request from Community Resources - Housing and Community Development Services
staff for direction regarding the plan to utilize the Community Development Block Grant - COVID-19
funds, as well as a request for authorization to submit amendments to the 2019 Annual Action Plan to
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for review and approval
Request: Information/Direction
Linda Haley, Housing and Community Development Division Manager, Community Resources
Jeremy Fink, Community Development Administrator, Community Resources
Don Klemme, Director, Community Resources
Todd Weaver, Director, Finance
Tiffanie Bleau, Senior Assistant County Attorney
Documents:
BSR FOR CDBG-CV STUDY SESSION 4-28-20.PDF
* To Be Recorded As Required By Law
WHR - West Hearing Room

Arapahoe County is committed to making its public meetings accessible to persons with disabilities.
Assisted listening devices are available. Ask any staff member and we will provide one for you.
If you need special accommodations, contact the Commissioners’ Office at 303-795-4630 or Relay Colorado 711.
Please contact our office at least 3 days in advance to make arrangements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Board of Directors
Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates
Englewood, Colorado
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Developmental Pathways, Inc.
and Affiliates, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and
the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements (financial statements).
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in
its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 10,
2019 on our consideration of Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates’ internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant
agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates’ internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Developmental Pathways, Inc. and
Affiliates’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Denver, Colorado
December 10, 2019
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Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2019

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Cash held for deferred compensation
Cash surrender value of life insurance
Note receivable
Property and equipment, net
Endowment investments
Total assets
Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Settlement liability
Deferred revenue
Deferred lease arrangements
Deferred compensation liability
Capital lease obligations
Total liabilities
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions
Undesignated
Board designated
Invested in property and equipment, net of related debt
With donor restrictions
Purpose restrictions
Perpetual in nature

$

4,894,799
11,820,425
7,430,371
137,155
160,379
108,465
816,267
6,772,142
1,051,906
$ 33,191,909

$

2,073,535
495,000
3,025,240
629,691
160,379
107,234
6,491,079

15,623,745
3,233,498
6,664,908
25,522,151
270,716
907,963
1,178,679

Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

26,700,830
$ 33,191,909
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Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Revenue, Support and Gains
State of Colorado - Medicaid
State of Colorado - other
Mill levy
Service fees and other program income
Rental income
Contributions
Net investment return
Interest and other income
Net assets released from restrictions
Total revenue, support and gains
Expenses and Losses
Program services
Case management
Support services
Quality assurance
Total program services

Without Donor
Restrictions
$ 8,057,109
16,282,664
15,699,685
1,743,986
948,708
245,362
419,360
383,697
271,983
44,052,555

With Donor
Restrictions
$

Total

170,457
34,664
(271,983)
(66,863)

$ 8,057,109
16,282,664
15,699,685
1,743,986
948,708
415,819
454,024
383,697
43,985,692

8,992,438
28,110,056
520,495
37,622,989

-

8,992,438
28,110,056
520,495
37,622,989

Supporting services
Management and general
Fundraising and development
Total supporting services
Total expenses

5,442,465
136,523
5,578,988
43,201,977

-

5,442,465
136,523
5,578,988
43,201,977

Loss on settlement
Total expenses and losses

495,000
43,696,977

-

495,000
43,696,977

Change in net assets before transfers
Transfer of HUD entities
Change in net assets
Net Assets, Beginning of Year (Restated)
Net Assets, End of Year

355,578
(3,951,104)
(3,595,526)
29,117,677
$ 25,522,151

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(66,863)
(66,863)
1,245,542
$ 1,178,679

288,715
(3,951,104)
(3,662,389)
30,363,219
$ 26,700,830
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Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Program services

Supporting services

Support
Services

Salaries, benefits, and taxes
Professional services
Client assistance and activities
Management fee
Occupancy
Depreciation and amortization
Other
Information technology
Staff development and travel
Office expenses
Insurance
Dues and subscriptions
Maintenance
Interest

$ 7,123,006
928,794
376,536
286,395
20,780
110,590
127,589
18,748
-

$ 6,494,217
10,840,083
9,851,578
231,206
287,659
163,651
97,470
127,693
11,628
537
4,325
9
-

$

353,527
12,584
120,088
27,345
5,913
1,038
-

$

27,736
388,735
4,012,197
260,132
164,678
103,047
119,313
18,868
162,804
86,234
48,843
44,946
4,932

$

78,871
16,044
80,439
643
620
269
-

$ 13,998,486
12,249,067
9,851,578
4,012,197
987,962
782,121
367,917
333,286
275,831
193,800
86,771
53,437
44,955
4,932

Total expenses by function

$ 8,992,438

$ 28,110,056

$

520,495

$ 5,442,465

$

176,886

$ 43,242,340

Less expenses netted with revenue
Cost of direct benefits to donors

-

-

-

-

Total expenses included in the expense
section on the statement of activities

$ 8,992,438

$ 28,110,056

520,495

$ 5,442,465

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Quality
Assurance

$

Management
and General

Fundraising
and
Development

Case
Management

(40,363)
$

136,523

Total

(40,363)
$ 43,201,977
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Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
from operating activities
Transfer of non-cash assets and liabilities - HUD entities
Loss on settlement
Depreciation and amortization
Donated furniture
Deferred compensation expense
Amortization of lease arrangements
Realized and unrealized (gain) loss on investments
Endowment net investment return
Change in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Change in cash surrender value of life insurance
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Net Cash (used for) Operating Activities

$

3,571,133
495,000
782,121
(33,705)
29,467
(28,532)
104,674
(34,664)
(3,256,234)
71,480
(26,218)
419,812
(590,776)
(2,158,831)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sales of investments
Purchases of property and equipment
Addition to cash held for deferred compensation
Withdrawal from endowment
Net Cash from Investing Activities

(3,538,652)
5,138,827
(857,822)
(29,467)
33,770
746,656

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Principal payments on note receivable
Principal payments on capital leases
Net Cash (used for) Financing Activities
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year
Transfer of assets and liabilities - HUD entities
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Restricted deposits and replacement reserve
Property and equipment, net
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Non-cash balances transferred
Cash and cash equivalents
Gain on fair value adjustment
Total transfer of HUD entities

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(3,662,389)

22,856
(29,484)
(6,628)

$
$

$

(1,418,803)
6,313,602
4,894,799
5,571
8,478
292,448
3,512,780
(248,144)
3,571,133
64,079
315,892
3,951,104
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Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Note 1 -

Principal Activities and Significant Accounting Policies

Organization
Developmental Pathways, Inc. (DPI, we, us, our) is a Colorado nonprofit agency created to serve individuals with
developmental disabilities and their families. Formed in 1964 as a community-based alternative to institutional
care, DPI provides a broad array of services based on the principle that full inclusion and participation in
community life is attainable for every individual with a developmental disability. DPI serves citizens of Arapahoe
and Douglas Counties, and that portion of Adams County within the city of Aurora.
We are one of 20 Colorado Community Centered Boards (CCBs) established by state statute in 1963. The role of
a CCB is to be responsible for community services for children with developmental disabilities and/or delays in
their development, and for adults with developmental disabilities. We enrich the lives of individuals with
developmental disabilities and/or delays by partnering to provide expertise, support, and advocacy in their
pursuit of a meaningful life. We foster choice and independence by collaborating with individuals and their
families to provide high-quality lifetime supports that will empower them to thrive in the community.
On July 1, 2018, we effected a restructuring among certain affiliated entities as part of our continuing
commitment towards providing conflict-free case management services to the individuals and families we serve
and to realign residential supports. As part of the restructuring, we transferred control of the three Housing and
Urban Development Housing Corporations (HUD entities) to Continuum of Colorado. This restructure also
included the dissolution of the SUN Foundation as of June 30, 2019. All operating and ongoing activities of the
SUN Foundation were absorbed by DPI.
We conduct our activities in cooperation with, and assistance from, our affiliated organizations: SUN Foundation
(dissolved as of June 30, 2019), and Youth Housing Colorado. The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of these affiliates. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. Unless otherwise noted, the consolidated entity is hereinafter referred to as “Pathways,” “we,”
“us,” and “our.”
Our primary service areas include the following:
Case Management
As a CCB, we determine eligibility for state and Medicaid-waiver funded programs and provide case
management services for individuals with developmental disabilities in Medicaid waiver and state funded
programs in our service area. Services identified in an annual individualized plan needs are purchased from
approved contractors and program-approved service agencies, using program funds available and as authorized
through each individual’s plan.
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Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Support Services
In addition to providing Case Management Services, Developmental Pathways provides support services in the
following program areas:
Early Intervention
Our Early Intervention program serves families with a child under three years old who has a significant delay
in their development and/or a qualifying diagnosis. We partner with local school districts to determine
eligibility for the program and then deliver services in the child’s home. We also provide assistance to
connect the family to funding and providers of the needed services.
Adult Developmental Disabilities
The Developmental Disabilities (DD) Medicaid waiver provides 24/7 residential care to adults. Services and
supports are provided by provider agencies and the Community Centered Board.
Children's Extensive Support
Children's Extensive Support (CES) services are provided through the Medicaid Home and Community Based
Services Waiver for children with the most challenging developmental disabilities. The CES Waiver allows
children who may not otherwise qualify for Medicaid State Plan Benefits to access Medicaid services.
Children continue to reside in the community with their families. The services allowed include personal
assistance with daily living, respite, homemaking skills, day services, assistive technology, home
modification, professional services, transportation and emergency assistance.
Family Support
This state funded program provides individualized support to families caring for a family member with
developmental disabilities/delays, including connecting them with resources and providing limited financial
assistance.
Adult Supported Living
The Medicaid funded Supported Living Services and the state funded Supported Living Services programs
provide a variety of services and supports for adults living in their own homes, or with family in the
community. The services allowed include personal assistance with daily living, homemaking skills,
employment, day services, assistive technology, home modification, professional services, transportation
and emergency assistance.
Community Outreach and Support of Families Waiting for Services
This program provides information and support to individuals and families waiting for state or federallyfunded services and helps bridge the gap until such time as funding becomes available.
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Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Quality Assurance
We have developed an extensive quality assurance program to ensure compliance with state rules and
regulations, but more importantly, to ensure that all individuals we serve receive the highest levels of attention
and care, and are treated with dignity, respect, and compassion. In addition to extensive and ongoing staff
training, we actively track our program-approved service agency (PASA) performance outcomes and investigate
allegations of abuse and neglect of individuals in services, as needed. We have 3 Human Rights Committees
comprised of independent third-party experts and family member volunteers who meet monthly to review
investigation results, psychotropic medication usage, rights suspensions, restrictive programming, and other
matter as required under state regulations.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider all cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months or less, and
which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes, to be cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and highly liquid financial instruments restricted to endowment are excluded from this definition.
Investments
We record investment purchases at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of donation. Thereafter,
investments are reported at their fair values in the statement of financial position. Net investment return is
reported in the statement of activities and consists of interest and dividend income, realized and unrealized
capital gains and losses, less external and direct internal investment expenses.
Receivables and Credit Policy
Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from the State of Colorado for services provided to
individuals under Medicaid. We determine the allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable based on
historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of subsequent collections. Accounts
receivable are written off when deemed uncollectable. At June 30, 2019, the allowance is $31,606.
Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance
We maintain variable universal life insurance policies on our key executives. The policies are recorded at their
net cash surrender values as determined by the insurance carrier. At June 30, 2019, the carrying value of the
policies is $108,465.
Property and Equipment
We record property and equipment additions over $5,000 at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of
donation. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets ranging from three to forty years, or in the case of capitalized leased assets, the lesser of the
useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related
depreciation or amortization are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included in the
statement of activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the
respective assets are expensed currently.
9

Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

We review the carrying values of property and equipment for impairment whenever events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows
expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an impairment loss is
recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset
impairment during the year ended June 30, 2019.
Net Assets
Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor- (or certain
grantor-) imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as
follows:
Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to
donor- (or certain grantor-) imposed restrictions. The governing board has designated, from net assets without
donor restrictions, net assets for identified needs (Note 8).
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-) imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time
or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the
donor stipulates the resources be maintained in perpetuity. We report contributions as restricted support if they
are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose
for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized when earned. Amounts received in advance of performance of the underlying services
are deferred to the period in which the services are performed. Our revenue consists primarily of funds received
from the State of Colorado for Medicaid and other services, proceeds from mill levies in Douglas, Arapahoe, and
Adams Counties, miscellaneous smaller grants and awards from federal, state, county and municipal sources,
and rental income from housing projects. Contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, an
unconditional promise to give, or notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give
are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been substantially met.
Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions
Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to our program services, administration, and fundraising and
development activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the value of these contributed services
because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by generally accepted accounting principles.
Contributed goods are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. We record donated professional services
at the respective fair values of the services received. We received donated furniture in the amount of $33,705
during the year ended June 30, 2019.
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Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents the natural classification detail of
expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting
services benefited.
The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than one program
or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied.
The expenses that are allocated include occupancy, depreciation and amortization, which are allocated on a
square footage basis, as well as salaries and wages, benefits, and taxes, professional services, staff development
and travel, office expenses, information technology, insurance, and other, which are allocated on the basis of
estimates of time and effort.
Income Taxes
Developmental Pathways, Inc., SUN Foundation (until dissolution), and Youth Housing Colorado are organized as
Colorado nonprofit corporations and have been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt
from federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, qualify for the charitable
contribution deduction, and have been determined not to be private foundations. Each entity annually is
required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS. In addition, the
entities are subject to income tax on net income that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to
their exempt purposes. Developmental Pathways, Inc. is subject to unrelated business income tax and files an
Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the IRS.
Management believes that Developmental Pathways, Inc. has appropriate support for any tax positions taken
affecting its annual filing requirements, and as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that are material
to the consolidated financial statements. The Organization would recognize future accrued interest and
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits and liabilities in income tax expense if such interest and penalties
are incurred. The Organization’s Forms 990, 990‐T and other income tax filings required by state, local, or non‐
U.S. tax authorities are no longer subject to tax examination for years before 2015.
Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates and those differences could be material.
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Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk
We manage deposit concentration risk by placing cash and money market accounts with financial institutions we
believe to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed insured limits or include uninsured
investments in money market mutual funds. To date, we have not experienced losses in any of these accounts.
Credit risk associated with accounts receivable is considered to be limited due to high historical collection rates
and because substantial portions of the outstanding amounts are due from governmental agencies. Investments
are made by an investment manager whose performance is monitored by management and the Finance
Committee of the Board of Directors. Although the fair values of investments are subject to fluctuation on a
year-to-year basis, the investment manager and the Finance Committee believe that the investment policies and
guidelines are prudent for the long-term welfare of the organization.
Subsequent Events
We have evaluated subsequent events through December 10, 2019, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.

Note 2 -

Liquidity and Availability

We operate on a balanced budget, and regularly monitor liquidity to meet our operating needs and other
contractual commitments while also striving to maximize the investment of our available funds. Financial assets
available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within one year
of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net
Cash surrender value of life insurance
Note receivable due in one year

$

4,768,026
10,653,690
7,430,371
108,465
23,375
$ 22,983,927

Our endowment funds consist of a single donor-restricted endowment. Income from the donor-restricted
endowment is restricted for medical and dental expenses. Donor-restricted endowment funds are not available
for general expenditure.
Our governing board has designated a portion of our unrestricted net assets for various initiatives described in
Note 8. These funds remain available and may be spent at the discretion of the Board.
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Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Note 3 -

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

We report certain assets at fair value in the financial statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous, market at the measurement date
under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the asset based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity.
Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions
market participants would use in pricing the asset based on the best information available. A three-tier
hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows:
Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that we can access at the
measurement date.
Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either
directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets in active markets, quoted prices for identical
or similar assets in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset,
and market-corroborated inputs.
Level 3 – Unobservable inputs for the asset. In these situations, we develop inputs using the best information
available in the circumstances.
In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset might be categorized within different levels
of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. Assessing
the significance of a particular input to entire measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors
specific to the asset. The categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency
of the asset and does not necessarily correspond to our assessment of the quality, risk or liquidity profile of the
asset.
A significant portion of our investment assets are classified within Level 1 because they are comprised of openend mutual funds with readily determinable fair values based on daily redemption values. We use Net Asset
Value (NAV) per share, as a practical expedient to estimate the fair values of certain hedge funds that do not
have readily determinable fair values. Investments that are measured at fair value using NAV per share as a
practical expedient are not classified in the fair value hierarchy.
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The following table presents assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis, except those measured at cost or
by using NAV per share as a practical expedient as identified below, at June 30, 2019:
Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Total
Investments
Money market (at cost)
Bond funds
Domestic equity funds
International equity funds
Multi-strategy hedge fund
Endowment investments
Money market (at cost)
Bond funds
Domestic equity funds
International equity funds

Quoted
Prices in
Active Markets
for Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

446,981
3,496,217
4,363,893
2,346,599
1,166,735
$ 11,820,425

3,496,217
4,363,893
2,346,599
$ 10,206,709

$

$

$

$

$

3,884
284,834
544,551
218,637
$ 1,051,906

$

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

$

284,834
544,551
218,637
1,048,022

$

$

-

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Investments
Measured at
NAV

$

-

$

-

$

$
$

$

1,166,735
$ 1,166,735

$

-

Investment in the multi-strategy hedge fund is measured at fair value using NAV per share as a practical
expedient at June 30, 2019. This fund is a “fund of hedge funds,” with the objective of capital appreciation with
limited variability of returns. The fund attempts to achieve this objective by allocating capital among a number
of underlying funds employing a variety of alternative investment strategies. Units are not redeemable at our
discretion as the fund makes a tender offer to repurchase members’ units at NAV on certain repurchase dates.

Note 4 -

Note Receivable

We have a note receivable from Continuum of Colorado in the original amount of $906,326, bearing an interest
rate of 2.28%, maturing on July 1, 2045, due in 360 installment payments of principal and interest of $3,458. At
June 30, 2019, the amount receivable under the note is $816,267.

14

Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2019

Note 5 -

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment at June 30, 2019 consists of the following:
$

Land
Buildings and improvements
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures
Computers and equipment

1,075,909
6,916,610
196,260
249,650
2,764,303
11,202,732
(4,430,590)

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
$

6,772,142

On July 1, 2018, we transferred three HUD entities to Continuum of Colorado. The fair value of the entities
transferred totaled $3,951,104, with a gain on fair value adjustment of $315,892 recorded in interest and other
income in the statement of activities.

Note 6 -

Leases

During the year ended June 30, 2019, we entered into a lease agreement expiring in 2027 for new space related
to our programmatic activities. The lease provided for lease incentives for build-out of space. Deferred lease
incentives are amortized over the life of the lease on a straight-line basis as an offset to rent expense and are
included in deferred lease arrangements in the accompanying statement of financial position. We lease vehicles,
equipment and space under various capital and operating lease agreements expiring at various dates through
2027.
Future minimum lease payments are as follows:
Capital
Leases

Years Ending June 30,
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Thereafter
Total minimum lease payments
Less amount representing interest
Capital lease obligations

$

$

34,416
34,416
34,416
11,472
114,720

$

(7,486)
107,234

Operating
Leases
$

$

379,633
378,176
378,176
378,176
359,040
927,520
2,800,721

Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 totaled $435,720.
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Note 7 -

Endowment

Our endowment (Endowment) consists of a single donor‐restricted fund established to provide funding for
medical and dental assistance to individuals with disabilities. Net assets associated with endowment funds are
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor‐imposed restrictions.
Our Board of Directors has interpreted the Colorado Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA)
as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted
endowment funds, unless there are explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. At June 30, 2019, there were no
such donor stipulations. As a result of this interpretation, we retain in perpetuity (a) the original value of gifts
donated to the Endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts donated to the Endowment, and (c)
accumulations to the Endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument
at the time accumulation is added. Donor-restricted amounts not retained in perpetuity are subject to
appropriation for expenditure in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. The
following factors are considered in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The duration and preservation of the fund
The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund
General economic conditions
The possible effect of inflation and deflation
The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
Other resources of the organization
The investment policies of the organization

As of June 30, 2019, we had the following donor-restricted endowment net asset composition by type of fund:

Original donor-restricted gift amount and amounts required
to be maintained in perpetuity by donor
Accumulated investment gains

With Donor
Restrictions
$
$

907,963
143,943
1,051,906

Investment and Spending Policies
We have adopted investment and spending policies for the Endowment that attempt to provide a predictable
stream of funding for operations while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the Endowment assets.
Over time, long-term rates of return should be equal to an amount sufficient to maintain the purchasing power
of the Endowment assets, to provide the necessary capital to fund the spending policy, and to cover the costs of
managing the Endowment investments. Under these policies, as approved by the Board of Directors,
endowment assets are invested in a manner intended to produce results, measured over full market cycles,
which equal or exceed the price and yield results of a blended portfolio of investment securities while assuming
a low-to-moderate level of investment risk.
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To satisfy long-term rate-of-return objectives, the investment portfolio is structured on a total-return approach
through which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and
current yield (interest and dividends). A significant portion of the funds are invested to seek growth of principal
over time.
The Board of Directors may appropriate for distribution each year a portion of the accumulated earnings in
excess of the perpetually restricted net assets of the Endowment to fund medical and dental expenses. In
establishing this policy, the Board of Directors considered the long-term expected return on our Endowment,
including times of market downturn. Accordingly, over the long term, the current spending policy is expected to
preserve the perpetually restricted net assets of the Endowment. This is consistent with our objective to
preserve the fair values of the original gifts made to the Endowment while providing an opportunity for real
growth through new gifts and undistributed investment return.
Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2019 are as follows:
With Donor
Restrictions
Endowment net assets, beginning of year
Net investment return
Appropriation of endowment earnings
Endowment net assets, end of year

Note 8 -

$
$

1,051,012
34,664
(33,770)
1,051,906

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes or periods at June 30, 2019:
Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Respite care
Community outreach
Early intervention
Senior study grant

$

Endowments:
Subject to appropriation and expenditure when specified event occurs:
Restricted by donors for medical and dental expenditures
Perpetual in nature, earnings from which are subject to appropriation for
Medical and dental expenditures
Total endowments

99,661
10,717
1,395
15,000
126,773
143,943

$

907,963
1,051,906
1,178,679
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Net assets were released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purpose as follows
during the year ended June 30, 2019:
Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
3+ initiative (support for children ages 3-21)
Respite care
Youth housing
Medical and dental
Community outreach
Employee assistance fund

$

$

Note 9 -

121,012
65,037
46,500
33,770
5,521
143
271,983

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

At June 30, 2019, our Board of Directors has designated certain net assets without donor restrictions for the
following purposes:

Capacity building
Infrastructure development
Family engagement
Youth housing
Contingency reserves
Transportation
3+ initiative (support for children ages 3-21)
Housing exploration
Respite care

$

$

882,077
750,000
726,353
549,576
150,000
74,242
55,701
30,840
14,709
3,233,498

Note 10 - Employee Benefits
We sponsor a retirement plan (the Plan) qualified under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC)
covering substantially all full-time employees who have attained the age of 18 and completed one year of
service. Employees may contribute up to the maximum contribution allowed by the IRS. We contribute 4% and
may make additional discretionary contributions determined by the Board of Directors each plan year. During
the year ended June 30, 2019, our 4% contributions to the plan totaled $269,887; there were no discretionary
contributions.
We sponsor a deferred compensation plan pursuant to section 457(f) of the IRC (Comp Plan) for a number of key
employees. Participants may make voluntary contributions to the Comp Plan up to the maximum amount
allowed by the IRS. Our contributions to the Comp Plan are discretionary based on individual employee
contracts. During the year ended June 30, 2019, we contributed $29,467.
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Note 11 - Settlement Liability
Subsequent to year end, we reached settlement under private mediation in an on-going litigation claim. The
settlement liability and corresponding loss were recognized in the accompanying consolidated statement of
financial position and consolidated statement of activities, respectively as of and for the year ended June 30,
2019.

Note 12 - Restatement
During the year ended June 30, 2019, we became aware that the deferred compensation liability under our
Comp Plan was not recorded in the previously issued financial statements. This matter required a restatement
to the June 30, 2018 consolidated financial information. As a result of this restatement, net assets without donor
restrictions and change in net asset without donor restrictions decreased $130,912 as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2018.
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Independent Accountant’s Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures
Matt Van Auken
Chief Executive Officer
Developmental Pathways, Inc.
Maureen Waller
Douglas County Commissioners’ Officer
Douglas County, Colorado
Nancy Sharpe
Arapahoe County Commissioner
Arapahoe County, Colorado
We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by: management of
Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates “Developmental Pathways”, Douglas County, Colorado; and
Arapahoe County, Colorado (hereinafter “you”), solely to assist you in reviewing the management and
general, program, and board-designated expenses within the consolidated financial statements of
Developmental Pathways for the year ended June 30, 2019. Developmental Pathways’ management is
responsible for the fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements. The sufficiency of these
procedures is solely the responsibility of the parties specified in this report. Consequently, we make no
representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures enumerated below either for the purpose for
which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.
Our procedures were as follows:
1. From Developmental Pathways obtain the general ledger detail of “Management and General”
expenses (as named in the audited financial statements) for Developmental Pathways for the
year ended June 30, 2019 and compare the total from the general ledger to the amount
reported in the audited financial statements. From this population, randomly select 25
transactions and:
a) Compare the charge to the underlying invoice or other supporting documentation
b) Report to the County the description of the charge based upon supporting
documentation so County can determine if the charge:
i. Was for a valid business purpose
ii. Was for services provided to County residents.
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Results:
We obtained the general ledger detail of “Management and General” expenses and agreed the total
of the detail to the audited consolidated financial statements without exception. The detail provided
was not specific to expenses paid by Douglas or Arapahoe Counties Mill Levy funding, as account
coding for expenses in the general ledger detail was not specific to funding sources.
We randomly selected 25 transactions from the general ledger detail and obtained the underlying
documentation for each transaction. The description of the charge and the underlying
documentation reviewed is shown in Appendix A.
2. From Developmental Pathways, obtain the general ledger detail for the following program
expenses paid for by County Mill Levy Funds during the year ended June 30, 2019:
o Early Intervention
o Family Support
o Community Outreach
o Outsourced Services
o Case Management
Compare the totals from the general ledger detail to the amounts reported in the audited
financial statements. From this population, randomly select 25 transactions and:
a) Compare the charge to the underlying invoice or other supporting documentation
b) Report to the County the description of the charge based upon the supporting
documentation, so County can determine if the charge:
i. Was for a valid business purpose
ii. Was for services provided to County residents.
Results:
We obtained the general ledger detail of program expenses for Early Intervention, Family Support,
Community Outreach, Outsourced Services, and Case Management and agreed the total of the
detail to the audited consolidated financial statements without exception. The detail provided was
not specific to expenses paid by Douglas and Arapahoe Counties Mill Levy funding, as account
coding for expenses in the general ledger detail was not specific to funding sources.
We randomly selected 25 transactions from the general ledger detail and obtained the underlying
documentation for each transaction. The description of the charge and the underlying
documentation reviewed is shown in Appendix B.
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3. From Developmental Pathways, obtain the general ledger detail for the following BoardDesignated Fund program expenses paid for by County Mill Levy Funds during the year ended
June 30, 2019:
o Capacity building
o Respite
o Transportation
o Wellness
o 3+ Initiative
o Youth housing
o Family engagement
o Housing exploration
Compare the totals from the general ledger to the amounts reported in the audited financial
statements. From this population, randomly select 25 transactions and:
a) Compare the charge to the underlying invoice or other supporting documentation
b) Report to the County the description of the charge based upon the supporting
documentation, so County can determine if the charge:
iii. Was for a valid business purpose
iv. Was for services provided to County residents.
Results:
We obtained the general ledger detail of the board-designated expenses from Developmental
Pathways. We could not compare the total of the detail to the consolidated audited financial
statements as releases of the board-designated expenses are not presented separately in the
consolidated audited financial statements of Developmental Pathways. We compared the detail to
the rollforward of board-designated fund program expenses used in preparation of the audited
financial statements without exception. In addition, the detail provided was not specific to expenses
paid by County Mill Levy funding, as account coding for expenses in the general ledger detail was
not specific to funding sources.
We randomly selected 25 transactions from the general ledger detail and obtained the underlying
documentation for each transaction. The description of the charge and the underlying
documentation reviewed is shown in Appendix C.
4. From Developmental Pathways obtain the calculation of the percentage of administrative
expenses to total revenue for the year ended June 30, 2019, and:
a) Trace the amounts used in the calculation to the general ledger detail
b) Recalculate the percentage of administrative expenses to total revenue so County can
determine if its requirement for the percentage of administrative expenses to total revenue
based on the intergovernmental agreement between Developmental Pathways and County
was met.
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Results:
The percentage of administrative expenses to total revenue was calculated based on the
consolidated audited financial statements of Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates for the
year ended June 30, 2019 using the “Management and General” line as administrative expenses and
“Total revenue, support and gains” as total revenue. The calculation reflects a percentage of
administrative expenses to total revenue under two scenarios: net administrative expenses reduced
by depreciation and amortization expense, which is considered a “non-spending” cost, and gross
administrative expenses without the corresponding reduction. The ratios are recalculated as follows:

5. Obtain from the Presidents (or designated authority) of the affiliated entities/organizations
listed in Note 1 – Organization, of Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates’ Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2019 (listed below), confirmation that they did
not compensate (or the amount they did compensate) Developmental Pathways executives for
executive functions related to the affiliated entities/ organizations:
o SUN Foundation (SUN)
o Youth Housing Corporation
a) Report to the County any changes in the payment for executive services from those listed
below to assist the County in understanding the calculation of administrative expenses as
addressed in the intergovernmental agreement and referenced in #4 above.
o SUN Foundation (SUN)
o Youth Housing Corporation
Results:
We obtained written confirmation from the Chief Executive Officer of the organizations listed in
Note 1 – Organization, of Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates’ consolidated audited
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019. The table below summarizes the responses.

4

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to and did
not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or
conclusion, respectively, on the subject matter. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or
conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention
that would have been reported to you.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of Developmental Pathways, Inc. and Affiliates,
Douglas County, Colorado, and Arapahoe County, Colorado, and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Denver, Colorado
January 29, 2020
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PUBLIC AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES
10th
This Agreement is entered into this _day
of September ,2019 by and between the
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS,STATE OF
COLORADO,hereinafter referred to as the "County," and DEVELOPMENTAL PATHWAYS,
INC.(DP),the Community Centered Board serving Douglas County. For purposes of this
Agreement, DEVELOPMENTAL PATHWAYS,INC.(DP),the Community Centered Board
serving Douglas County, Colorado, specifically includes its affiliated entities Continuum of
Colorado(CoC)and Nonprofit Management Services of Colorado(NMSC)."

RECITALS
WHEREAS,the citizens ofthe County passed a one mill property tax to be used for the
benefit of County citizens with developmental disabilities and their families, hereinafter referred
to as the "DD Mill Levy"; and
WHEREAS,DP,pursuant to section 27-10.5-105, C.R.S. provides and contracts for
services for the benefit ofthe citizens ofthe County with developmental disabilities and their
families through its designation by the State of Colorado as a Community Centered Board under
section 25.5-10-209, C.R.S.; and
WHEREAS,the County is the designated collection and disbursement agent for all
property taxes collected within the County, including the DD Mill Levy;
NOW THEREFORE,IT IS AGREED by and between the County and DP as follows:
1.
LINE OF AUTHORITY: Maureen Waller,(the "Authorized Representative"), is
designated as Authorized Representative of the County for the purpose of administering this
agreement with DP in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.
2.
SCOPE OF SERVICES: All services described in Exhibit A, attached hereto
and incorporated herein, shall be performed by DP.
DP agrees to diligently and professionally perform all the services described herein in
accordance with the terms of this agreement and applicable state and federal laws, rules and
regulations. It is also understood and agreed that DP shall not, in performing services hereunder,
undertake any action or activity prohibited by the terms of any lease, permit, license or other
agreement in effect during the term hereof between DP and the County for the use and
occupancy by DP of any County facilities or space.
3.
COMPENSATION: Subject to the maximum contract/agreement liability and
all other provisions of this Agreement, the County agrees to pay to DP, and DP agrees to accept
payment as described in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein, during the term
hereof, in accordance with the terms set forth herein.
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4.
MAXIMUM CONTRACT EXPENDITURE: Any other provision of this
Agreement notwithstanding and pursuant to Section 29-1-110, C.R.S., the amount of funds
appropriated for this Agreement is eight million, eight hundred ninety-nine thousand, one
hundred and seventy-one dollars ($8,899,171) for the eighteen months beginning July 1, 2019
and ending December 31, 2020. This is only an estimate and will differ based on actual
collections. In the event that the developmental disabilities property tax collections exceed
projections, the County will take necessary steps to ensure payment as specified by Exhibit B to
DP. The County is not under obligation to make any future apportionment or allocation to this
Agreement nor is anything set forth herein a limitation of liability for DP, Inc. Any potential
expenditure for this Agreement outside the current fiscal year is subject to future annual
appropriation of funds for any such proposed expenditure.
5.
TERM: It is mutually agreed by the parties that the term of this Agreement shall
commence as of 12:01 a.m. on July 1, 2019 and be effective for a period of eighteen months,
terminating at 12:00 a.m. on December 31, 2020. This Agreement shall renew automatically on
December 31St of each year for an additional one year term unless amended or terminated by the
County as provided in Section 16. This Agreement and/or any extension of its original term shall
be contingent upon annual funding being appropriated, budgeted and otherwise made available
for such purposes and subject to the County's satisfaction with all products and services received
during the preceding term.
6.

INVOICING PROCEDURES: Not Applicable

CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Without the written permission of the County, DP
7.
agrees that no official, officer or employee of the County shall have any personal or beneficial
interest whatsoever in the services or property described herein, and DP further agrees not to
hire, pay, or contract for services of any official, officer or employee of the County. A conflict
of interest shall include transactions, activities or conduct that would affect the judgment, actions
or work of DP by placing DP's interests, or the interest of any party with whom DP has a
contractual arrangement, in conflict with those of County.
8.
INDEMNIFICATION: The County cannot and by this Agreement does not
agree to indemnify, hold harmless, exonerate or assume the defense of DP or any other person or
entity whatsoever for any purpose whatsoever. DP shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless
the County, its commissioners, officials, officers, directors, agents, and employees from any and
all claims, demands, suits, actions or proceedings of any kind or nature whatsoever, including
workers' compensation claims, in any way resulting from DP's performance of services as set
forth herein; provided, however, that DP need not indemnify or save harmless the County, its
officers, agents and employees from damages resulting from the sole negligence of the County's
commissioners, officials, officers, directors, agents, and employees.
9.
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: DP is an independent contractor and is free
to perform services for other clients. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, all
personnel assigned by DP to perform work under this Agreement shall be and remain at all
times, employees, subcontractors, or other independent contractors of DP for all purposes. THE
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR IS NOT ENTITLED TO WORKERS' COMPENSATION
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OR UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS THROUGH THE COUNTY AND IS OBLIGATED TO
PAY FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAX ON ANY MONIES EARNED PURSUANT TO
THE CONTRACT RELATIONSHIP.
10.
ILLEGAL ALIENS: If DP has any employees or subcontractors, DP shall
comply with §8-17.5-101, et seq. C.R.S., regarding Illegal Aliens -Public Contracts for Services,
and this Agreement. By execution of this Agreement, DP certifies that it does not knowingly
employ or contract with an illegal alien who will perform work under this Agreement and that
DP will participate in either the E-Verify Program or Department Program in order to confirm
the eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to perform work under this
Agreement.
A.

DP shall not:
(i)

Knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to pe►•form work under
this Agreement; or

(ii)

Enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to DP that the
subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien
to perform work under this Agreement.

B.
DP has confirmed the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly
hired for employment to perform Work under this Agreement through participation in either the
E-Verify Program or Department Program.
C.
DP shall not use either the E-Verify Program or Department Program to undertake
pre-employment screening of job applicants while this Agreement is in effect.
D.
If DP obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under this
Agreement knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, DP shall:
(i)

Notify the subcontractor and the County within three (3) days that DP has
actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with
an illegal alien; and

(ii)

Terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within three (3) days
of receiving the notice required pursuant to the preceding subsubparagraph of this subparagraph, the subcontractor does not stop
employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except that DP shall not
terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during such three (3) days
the subcontractor provides information to establish that the subcontractor
has not knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien.

E.
DP shall comply with any reasonable request by the Department of Labor and
Employment made in the course of an investigation that the Department is undertaking pursuant
to the authority established in §8-17.5-102(5), C.R.S.
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If DP violates this provision of this Agreement; the County may terminate the
F.
Agreement for a breach of contract. If the Agreement is so terminated, DP shall be liable for
actual and consequential damages to the County as required by law.
G.
The County will notify the Office of the Secretary of State if DP violates this
provision of this Agreement and the County terminates the Agreement for such breach.
11.
NO WAIVER OF GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY ACT: The parties hereto
understand and agree that the County, its commissioners, officials, officers, directors, agents and
employees, are relying on, and do not waive or intend to waive by any provisions of this
Agreement, the monetary limitations or any other rights, immunities and protections provided by
the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §§ 24-10-101 to 120, C.R.S., or otherwise available
to the County.
ASSIGNMENT: DP covenants and agrees that it will not assign or transfer its
12.
rights hereunder, either in whole or in part without the prior written approval of the Authorized
Representative. The Authorized Representative agrees to not unreasonably withhold approval
for such assignment. DP agrees to provide reasonable choices among service agencies for
individuals with developmental disabilities and their families and agrees to continue to use other
Program Approved Service Agencies within the County to provide appropriate services.
13.
COUNTY REVIEW OF RECORDS: DP agrees that, upon request of the
Authorized Representative, at any time during the term of this Agreement, or three (3) years
thereafter, it will make full disclosure to the County and make available for inspection and audit
upon request by the Authorized Representative, the County Director of Finance, or any of their
authorized representatives, all of its records associated with work performed under this
Agreement for the purpose of making an audit, examination or excerpts. DP shall maintain such
records until the expiration ofthree(3) years following the end ofthe term of this Agreement.
14.
OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS: DP shall be the owner of any confidential
client documents in its possession. The County shall have the right without any limitation of any
kind to own and use in whole or in part documents provided to the County related to the
Agreement including, but not limited to, the annual Mill Levy Report and any documents
responsive to Exhibit A.
15.
ASSIGNMENT OF COPYRIGHTS: DP is bound by certain assignments of
rights and copyrights pursuant to its primary contract with the State of Colorado that conflict
with assignment of copyrights to other entities.
16.
TERMINATION: The County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement,
with or without cause, by giving written notice to DP of such termination and specifying the
effective date thereof, which notice shall be given at least ten (10) days before the effective date
of such termination. In such event, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies and
reports prepared by DP pursuant to this Agreement shall become the County's property. DP shall
be entitled to receive compensation in accordance with this Agreement for any satisfactory work

4
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completed pursuant to the terms of this Agreement prior to the date of notice of termination.
Notwithstanding the above, DP shall not be relieved of liability to the County for damages
sustained by the County by virtue of any breach of the Agreement by Developmental Pathways,
Inc.
17.
NOTICES: Notices concerning termination of this Agreement, notices of alleged
or actual violations of the terms or provisions of this Agreement, and all other notices shall be
made as follows:
by Developmental Pathways Maureen Waller
to:
Douglas County Commissioners' Office
100 Third Street
Castle Rock, CO 80104
Facsimile (303)484-4344
mwaller@douglas.co.us
with a copy to:

and by the County to:

Douglas County Attorney's Office
100 Third Street
Castle Rock, CO 80104
(303)660-74141
Matt VanAuken
Developmental Pathways, Inc.
325 Inverness Drive South
Englewood, CO 80112
Facsimile 303-341-0382
mattvanauken@developmentalpathways.org

Said notices shall be delivered personally during normal business hours to the appropriate office
above, or by prepaid first class U.S. mail, via facsimile, or other method authorized in writing by
the Authorized Representative. Mailed notices shall be deemed effective upon receipt or three
(3) days after the date of mailing, whichever is earlier. The parties may from time to time
designate substitute addresses or persons where and to whom such notices are to be mailed or
delivered, but such substitutions shall not be effective until actual receipt of written notification.
18.
NONDISCRIMINATION: In connection with the performance of work under
this Agreement, DP agrees not to refuse to hire, discharge, promote or demote, or to discriminate
in matters of compensation against any person otherwise qualified, solely because of race, color,
religion, national origin, gender, age, military status, sexual orientation, marital status, or
physical or mental disability.
19.
GOVERNING LAW; VENUE: This Agreement shall be deemed to have been
made in, and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado. Venue for any
action hereunder shall be in the District Court, County of Douglas, and State of Colorado. DP
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expressly waives the right to bring any action in or to remove any action to any other
jurisdiction, whether state or federal.
20.
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS AND REGULATIONS: All of the work
performed under this Agreement by DP shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations
and codes of the United States and the State of Colorado. DP shall also comply with all
applicable ordinances, regulations, and resolutions of the County and shall commit no trespass
on any public or private property in the performance of any of the work embraced by this
Agreement.
21.
SEVERABILITY: In the event any of the provisions of this Agreement are held
to be unenforceable or invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the validity of the
remaining provisions shall not be affected. Should either party fail to enforce a specific term of
this Agreement it shall not be a waiver of a subsequent right of enforcement, nor shall it be
deemed a modification or alteration of the terms and conditions contained herein.
22.
NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES: The enforcement of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and all rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be
strictly reserved to the County and DP and nothing contained in this Agreement shall give or
allow any such claim or right of action by any other or third person under such Agreement.
23.
PRIORITY OF PROVISIONS: In the event that any terms of this Agreement
and any Exhibit, attachment, or other referenced document are inconsistent, the following order
of priority shall control:
1 St
2nd

3`d
4~"

This Agreement sections 1 through 29
Exhibit B and attached Referendum
Exhibit A Scope of Services
Exhibit C Insurance Requirements

24.
HEADINGS; RECITALS: The headings contained in this Agreement are for
reference purposes only and shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this
Agreement. The Recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein.
25.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT:The parties acknowledge and agree that the provisions
contained herein constitute the entire agreement and that all representations made by any
commissioner, official, officer, director, agent or employee of the respective parties unless
included herein are null and void and of no effect. No alterations, amendments, changes or
modifications to this Agreement, except those which are expressly reserved herein to the
Authorized Representative, shall be valid unless they are contained in writing and executed by
all the parties with the same formality as this Agreement.
26.
INSURANCE: DP shall be required to maintain the insurance requirements
provided in Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. DP shall provide
evidence that such requirements have been met and shall provide updated information to the

D
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County in the event any changes are made to DP's insurance coverage during the term of this
Agreement.
27.
ADVERTISING AND PUBLIC DISCLOSURE: DP shall not include any
reference to this Agreement or services performed pursuant to this Agreement in any of DP's
advertising or public relations materials without first obtaining the written approval of the
Douglas County Public Affairs Director. Nothing herein, however, shall preclude the transmittal
of any information to officials of the County, including without limitation, the County Manager,
Deputy County Manager, and the Board of County Commissioners.
28.
FORCE MAJEURE: No party shall be liable for failure to perform hereunder if
such failure is the result offorce majeure. Any time limit shall be extended for the period of any
delay resulting from any force majearre, or this Agreement may be terminated if such delay
makes performance of the Agreement impossible or impracticable. Force majeure shall mean
causes beyond the reasonable control of a party such as, but not limited to, weather conditions,
acts of God, strikes, work stoppages, unavailability of or delay in receiving labor or materials,
faults by contractors, subcontractors, utility companies or third parties, fire or other casualty or
action of government authorities.
29.
COUNTY EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT: This Agreement is expressly
subject to, and shall not be or become effective or binding on the County, until execution by all
signatories of the County.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF,the County and Developmental Pathways, Inc. have executed
this Agreement as of the above date.
Developmental Pathwa ,s, I c.
BY:

ATTEST: (if a corporation)

Printed Name
TiNe:~~~M ~~a
(~~

Title:

DATE: g(~ ~~9
Signature of Notary Public Required:
STATE OF C aI u~c.C~~

)
ss.

COUNTY OF

O ~-i-~ ~~vS

)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this o~l~ day of~~
Witness my band and official seal
SELINA R GRIGGS
Notary Public - State of Colorado
Notary ID 20184004317
My Commission Expires Jan 25, 2022
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Notary Public
My commission expires: ~ "'as ~c~~ ~

~,,

3

.c

.xi~.:~t~:

`~.:;er..to-'~n'4t"iie+~*~~r.X'"`~`M~:"^Yx t..~1
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BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF THE COUNTY OF DOUGLAS

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

:•
Roger A. Partridge, Chair
DATE:

9/12/2019

Douglas J. DeBord, County Manager
DATE:

9/6/2019

ATTEST:

for Emily

Wrenn,Deputy Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FISCAL CONTENT:

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:

Andrew Copland
Director of Finance

John Thirkell
Sr. Assistant County Attorney

DATE:

9/6/2019

DATE:

9/5/2019
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Exhibit A
SCOPE OF SERVICES
DP agrees to assure accountability for performance of its service and financial obligations as
follows:
A. DP will continue to comply with applicable state and federal laws and regulatory
requirements for programs and services provided with DD Mill Levy funds that are
subject to those requirements, except that separate data systems exclusive to County
funded services will be established to ensure that County funds do not supplant federal,
state, or school district funding obligations. Documentation of such regulatory
compliance will be provided to the County upon request for any program or service
supported with DD Mill Levy funds.
B. Developmental Pathways will separately track the expenditures funded by Douglas
County mill levy dollars and generate a report that clearly identifies the recipients of
these funds as Douglas County residents. The tracking method shall clearly differentiate
Douglas County mill levy dollars from all other sources of funding (e.g., Arapahoe
County mill levy dollars, State or Federal funds). This shall be verified by DP's auditors
annually.
C. DP agrees to provide to the County, during the first quarter of each calendar year, a mill
levy accountability report regarding the previous year. DP shall present this report at a
meeting with the Board of County Commissioners. This report shall include, but not be
limited to:
l) Data regarding total enrollment into services, by service category for residents of
Douglas County, separated into those funded through State Services and those funded
through Mill Levy funds.
2) Data regarding service levels in actual numbers and percentages, by county and by
service category, compared to known need for services.
3) Data regarding staff turnover rates and financial stability of DP, including number of
months of operations in unrestricted fund balance.
4) Data that details the number of Douglas County children, by age group, served with
the DD Mill Levy money.
5) Data that details the number of Douglas County individuals or families served with
Mill Levy money by program; the average yearly direct service expenditure per
Douglas County individual or family; and the number of Douglas County individuals
or families waiting for services.
6) A brief description of services provided to Douglas County residents in reference to
the language describing desired services from the original Mill Levy Referendum.

10
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D. DP agrees to provide the County with a copy of its annual report and a copy of its
audited financial statements when they are received from the auditors. The County also
reserves the right to audit the use of DD Mill Levy funds.
E. DP will provide the County a list of all programmatic or financial audits, including the
Single Audit, conducted during the previous fiscal year regarding DP or its subsidiary
organizations. DP will indicate any findings on the list. The County reserves the right to
review such audits after making a request in writing to DP specifying the desired audit
and a reasonable time frame to provide it to the County.
F. A summary of 3-5 year growth projections as to DP's plans and capability to serve
Douglas County based on future population growth and demographic changes such as an
increased percentage of DC residents over the age of 60. This summary can be contained
in the Mill Levy Report or submitted separately.
G. DP agrees to appoint one County Commissioner, or their designee, selected by the
County, to serve on the Board of Directors of Developmental Pathways, Inc.
H. DP agrees to provide the County with appropriate contacts and referral procedures for the
County's use in responding to individuals, agencies, or others with questions, concerns or
complaints about services or other matters relating to DD Mill Levy funding.
I. DP agrees to provide the County, upon request, with reasonable additional information
regarding administration and expenditure ofthe DD Mill Levy funds.
J. DP agrees to administer the DD Mill Levy funds for the benefit of County citizens with
developmental disabilities and their families, and to do so in a manner consistent with the
terms ofthe referendum as approved by County voters (attached hereto as Attachment
#1).
K. DP will create a visual representation ofthe responsibilities of, and the relationships,
interactions and dependencies between Developmental Pathways —Community Centered
Board, Continuum of Colorado, and Nonprofit Management Services of Colorado
(NMSC).
L. Administrative Costs: DP agrees that for Douglas County Mill Levy funded costs, and
on an overall basis, audited costs for the administration of Developmental Pathways, Inc.
shall be correctly classified/coded and targeted at 12% of all revenues received for the
fiscal year under audit. Under no circumstance shall Administration costs exceed 15%
for any fiscal year. If Administration costs exceed 15%,a formal review may be
precipitated by the County Commissioners or their designees. DP will include an
affirmative statement regarding the percentage of their Mill Levy and overall
administrative costs in writing, annually. Administrative costs percentages shall be
verified by DP's auditors annually.

11
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M. DP agrees to engage their auditors to conduct an annual Agreed-Upon Procedures Audit
as a part of their annual audit process. DP will provide the County a copy of this annual
audit.
N. Any Mill Levy money that flows from DP to any of their affiliated entities/organizations
must adhere to the terms of this Agreement.

12
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Exhibit B

METHOD OF PAYMENT
The County Treasurer's Office will collect the Developmental Disabilities mill levy funds via its
normal collection methods. The County's Finance Department will distribute the amount
collected by the County Treasurer to Developmental Pathways, Inc. via electronic funds transfer
by no later than the 15`" of the month following collection. In no event shall the County be
liable for any expenditure in excess of the amounts actually collected.
Allocation of Funds:
Actual Developmental Disabilities Mill Levy Gross Receipts
Less Treasurer's Fees(1.5% of Gross Receipts)
Less Special Programs(5.5% of Gross Receipts)
Equals Net Disbursement to Developmental Pathways, Inc.
A reserve of $100,000 shall be maintained annually. Should the need require the reserve to be
replenished, the necessary amount will be included in the calculation.

13
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Exhibit C
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Ins~n•ance.
1.
Developmental Pathways, Inc.(DP)agrees to procure and maintain with insurers with an
A- or better rating as determined by Best's Key Rating Guide, at its own expense, the following policies
ofinsurance:
(a)
Workers' Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by applicable laws for
any employee engaged in the performance of work under this Agreement, and Employers' Liability
insurance with the following limits:
Workers' Compensation:
Employers' Liability:

Statutory
$1,000,000

Commercial General Liability insurance with minimum combined single limits of ONE
(b)
MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) each occurrence and ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000)
aggregate. The policy will be applicable to all premises and operations. The policy will include coverage
for bodily injury, broad form property damage (including completed operations), personal injury
(including coverage for contractual and employee acts), blanket contractual, independent contractors,
products, and completed operations. The policy will contain a severabiliTy of interests' provision.
(c)
Commercial Automobile Liability insurance with minimum combined single limits for
bodily injury and property damage of not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) each
occurrence with respect to each of Developmental Pathways, Inc.'s owned, hired and non-owned vehicles
assigned to or used in performance of the services. The policy will contain a severability of interests'
provision.
(d)
Professional Liability Insurance Coverage in an amount not less than One Million Dollars
($1,000,000.00), and DP shall maintain such coverage for at least two (2) years from the termination of
this Agreement.
2.
The required Commercial General Liability and Commercial Automobile Liability
policies will be endorsed to include Douglas County as a Certificate Holder and name Douglas County,
its officers and employees as additional insureds. The required Workers' Compensation policy will be
endorsed to include Douglas County as a Certificate Holder. Douglas County reserves the right to request
and receive a certified copy of any policy and any endorsement thereto.
3.
The certificates of insurance will be attached to this Agreement as evidence that policies
providing the required coverages, conditions, and minimum limits are in full force and effect. The
completed certificates of insurance and any notices, within 20 days of cancellation, termination, or
material change will be sent to:
Megan Datwyler
Douglas County
Risk Management
100 Third Street
Castle Rock, Colorado 80104
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4.
DP will not be relieved of any liability, claims, demands, or other obligations assumed by
its failure to procure or maintain insurance, or its failure to procure or maintain insurance in sufficient
amounts, durations, or types.
5.
Failure on the part of DP to procure or maintain policies providing the required
coverages, conditions and minimum limits will constitute a material breach of contract upon which
Douglas County may immediately terminate this Agreement.
6.
The parties hereto understand and agree that Douglas County is relying on, and does not
waive or intend to waive by any provision of this Agreement, the monetary limitations (presently
$150,000 per person and $600,000 per occurrence) or any other rights, immunities, and protections
provided by the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, Sections 24-10-101 et sea•, C.R.S., as from time
to time amended, or otherwise available to Douglas County, its officers, or its employees.

Insurance Certificates.
A. DP shall, prior to commencing services, deliver to the County Certificates of Insurance as
evidence that policies providing any and all required coverages and limits are in full force and
effect.
B. These certificates will serve as an indication to the County that DP has acquired all necessary
insurance; however, the County may require that certified copies of the insurance Policies be
submitted and may withhold payment for services until the applicable insurance policies are
received and found to be in accordance with the Agreement.
C. Insurance limits must be on each Certificate of Insurance. Each Certificate of Insurance shall be
reviewed and approved by County prior to commencement of services under the Agreement. The
certificates shall identify this Agreement.

Approved by:
Megan Datwyler
Risk Manager

15
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Attachment 1
HELPING COUNTY RESIDENTS
WITH MENTAL RETARDATION
Referendum 4A
SHALL DOUGLAS COUNTY, COLORADO, TAXES BE INCREASED BY $2.7 MILLION
ANNUALLY IN THE FIRST FULL FISCAL YEAR AND BY WHATEVER ADDITIONAL
AMOUNTS ARE RAISED ANNUALLY IN EACH SUBSEQUENT FISCAL YEAR BY THE
IMPOSITION OF AN ADDITIONAL MILL LEVY OF ONE (1) MILL, AS AUTHORIZED BY
SECTION 27-10.5-104(6), C.R.S., UPON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE COUNTY,
COMMENCING IN THE YEAR 2001, AND CONTINUING THEREAFTER, SUCH REVENUES TO
BE COLLECTED, RETAINED, DEDICATED AND SPENT FOR THE PURPOSES OF PROVIDING
AND PURCHASING SERVICES AND SUPPORTS FOR PERSONS WITH MENTAL
RETARDATION,INCLUDING:
• PROTECTING AND ASSISTING PEOPLE WITH MENTAL RETARDATION, DEFINED AS
CHILDREN AND ADULTS WITH SEVERE LIFE-LONG CONDITIONS SUCH AS DOWN
SYNDROME, CEREBRAL PALSY, AND AUTISM, OFTEN ACCOMPANIED BY MAJOR
PHYSICAL HANDICAPS;
•

AVOIDING COSTLY OUT-OF-HOME PLACEMENTS BY EDUCATING AND ASSISTING
FAMILIES TO KEEP THEIR CHILD OR SIBLING WITH MENTAL RETARDATION IN THE
FAMILY HOME;

•

HELPING ADULTS WITH MENTAL RETARDATION FIND AND HOLD REGULAR JOBS
AND LIVE AS PRODUCTIVE CITIZENS IN THEIR COMMUNITIES;

• PROVIDING DAY CARE AND OTHER SERVICES FOR SENIORS WITH MENTAL
RETARDATION SO THAT WORKING FAMILIES CAN CARE FOR THEM AT HOME;
•

WORKING INTENSIVELY WITH INFANTS AND TODDLERS WITH(OR AT HIGH RISK OF)
MENTAL RETARDATION USING METHODS PROVEN TO MINIMIZE FUTURE HANDICAPS
AND REDUCE THE COSTS OF FUTURE CARE;

• REDUCING LONG WAITING LISTS OF CHILDREN AND ADULTS WITH MENTAL
RETARDATION WHO NEED SUCH SERVICES AND SUPPORTS;
•

ACHIEVING THESE ENDS THROUGH EXISTING COUNTY-AUTHORIZED AGENCIES
WITHOUT EXPANDING COUNTY GOVERNMENT;

ALL AS A VOTER APPROVED REVENUE CHANGE AND-AN EXCEPTION TO THE LIMITS
WHICH WOULD OTHERWISE APPLY UNDER ARTICLE X, SECTION 20 OF THE COLORADO
CONSTITUTION OR ANY OTHER LAW?

16
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DATE(MMIDD/YYYY)

o~~al~Zol9

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

A
lC~RO~

~.r

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certi£cate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
1-303-534-4567

PRODUCER
IMA, Inc. - Colorado Division

CONTACT
NAME:
PHONE
Al No Ext :

FAX
AIC No
denaccountteche@imacorp.com

1705 17th St Ste 100

ADRESS:

Denver, CO 80202

INSURERA: PHILADELPHIA INS CO

23650

INSURED
Developmental Pathways, Inc.

INSURER e : P=~ACOL ASSUR

41190

INSURERS AFFORDINGCOVERAGE

NAIC#

INSURER C
INSURER D:

325 Inverness DrivE SOUth

INSURER E
Englewood

CO 80112

INSURERF:

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 56651820

COVERAGES

REVISION NUMBER

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
I NDICATED. NOTN/ITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AlL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
ADDL SUBR
TYPE OF INSURANCE
LIMITS
I~TR
POLICY NUMBER
MMDDY
/YYYY
MMIDDY
/YYYY
A
X COMMERCIALGENERALLIABILITY
PHPR1998720
07/01/19 07/01/20 EACH OCCURRENCE
$ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TORENTE~
CLAIMS-MADE ~ OCCUR
5 1,000,000
PREMISES Ea occurrence

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:
POLICY~ PR~
JECT

~LOC

MED EXP (Any one person)

$ 20,000

PERSONAL&ADV INJURY

$ 1,000,000

GENERAL AGGREGATE

y~ 3,000,000

PRODUCTS-COMP/OP AGG

$ 3000,000

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
Ea acadent
BODILY INJURY (Per person)

§ 1,000,000

OTHER:
A

X
X

A

g
PHPK1998720

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

X

07/01/19

07/01/20

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

~
~

X

~PHUS681182

X

UMBRELLALIAB
EXCESS LIAR

OCCUR

PROPERTY DAMAGE
Per accident

07/01/19

07/01/20

CLAIMS-MADE

DED
X RETENTION$ 10,000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY
YIN
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
~ N/A
OFFICERIMEMBEREXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
if yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
A Professional Liability
B

$

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $
~

EACH OCCURRENCE

g 1,000,000

AGGREGATE

g 1,000,000
~

2192232

07/01/19

07/01/20

X

STATUTE

~ERH
$ 500,000

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.l. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 500,000
E.L. DISEASE -POLICY LIMIT
PHPR1998720

07/01/19

07/01/20

Bach Occurrence
Aggregate

3 500,000

$ 1,000,000
3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OFOPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Douglas County, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are included as Additional Insureds on the General
Liability Policy if required by written contract or agreement subject to the policy terms and conditions. A Waiver of
A Waiver of Subrogation is provided in favor of Additional Insureds on the General, Automobile, Professional Liability
and Workers Compensation Policies if required by written contract or agreement

subject

to the policy terms and

conditions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCFI I ~TInN
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

Douglas County Government

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Attn: Risk Management
100 Third Street

USA

2018spm60
56651820

BE

DELIVERED

IN

AUTHORIZE~REPRESENTATIVE

Castle Rock, CO 80104

ACORD 25(2016/03)

WILL

~~`/~~/~
~~

O 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Dedicated to serving individuals with disabilities

MILL LEVY REPORT

Douglas & Arapahoe Counties
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We are a hub of information & resources,
propelled by a team of passionate staff, &
dedicated to serving a community of diverse abilities.
Developmental Pathways (DP) is the largest Community Centered Board (CCB)
in Colorado, serving more than 8,000 individuals with developmental
disabilities/delays (I/DD) across the Denver metro area, specifically in Arapahoe,
Douglas, & Adams counties. The state of Colorado created CCBs in 1964 to
transition the support of people with I/DD from institutions to the communities in
which they live and participate. There are currently 20 CCBs across the state
serving individuals and families from birth to end of life. At DP, we partner with
people in their pursuit of a meaningful life through advocacy, education,
connection, & support. We strive to be a central resource for anyone with a
disability seeking additional help: if we can’t meet your need, we know someone
in the community who can. Our programs are primarily funded by federal, state,
and county dollars as well as private philanthropy that supports the unmet
needs of many connected to our organization.

VISION

MISSION

Enriching Lives.
Strengthening Communities.

To enrich the lives of people with
developmental disabilities/delays by
partnering to provide expertise,
support, & advocacy in their pursuit of
a meaningful life.

VALUES
Integrity | To actively & transparently collaborate with government & community partners
Innovation | To join our community in the innovation & implementation of person-centered practices
Partnership | To be a customer-service focused agency, both internally & externally
Stewardship | To optimize resources by stewarding financial & human capital well

1

HISTORY OF THE MILL LEVY
In 2001, Developmental Pathways was experiencing a funding crisis due to rapid
population growth and increased demand for services in Arapahoe and Douglas
counties. The contract Developmental Pathways had with the State of Colorado,
the primary source of revenue for developmental disability/delay services in our
area, had fallen far behind the demand for services and our organization faced
major fiscal cuts to services. This problem was compounded by the
disproportionate distribution of funding from the state, resulting in the lowest per
capita allocation of resources to Arapahoe and Douglas counties relative to any
other area of Colorado. The only option available to stave off these cuts and meet at
least part of the ongoing rush of service demands was through a mill levy election.
This election fell within the conditions set by the Taxpayer’s Bill of Rights (TABOR)
in accordance with state statute (27-10.5 C.R.S.) and allows a one-mill county
property tax exclusively for services for people with developmental
disabilities/delays. With the unanimous support of the Arapahoe and Douglas
County Commissioners, Referendum 4A was placed on the 2001 ballot in both
counties.
Months of intensive campaigning, spearheaded by hundreds of volunteers, led to
the referendum being passed in both counties. The efforts required for this success
included meetings with community groups, public forums, distribution of voter
education materials, grass-roots voter turnout efforts, and much more.
In 2001, voters approved a mill levy to support individuals with developmental
disabilities/delays. Based on that bill, we developed the following three core
priorities:

To provide services to individuals on the waiting list
To raise the quality services for all individuals with a
developmental disability/delay
To stabilize and improve the overall service infrastructure,
with particular attention to recruitment, training, and retention
of quality staff
As a result of the successful campaign, service cuts were avoided and more than
1,600 new individuals with developmental disabilities/delays were served with mill
levy funds in the first 2 years of implementation. However, service needs in our
catchment area had grown to such high levels that, while mill levy funds reduced
the waiting list, they still fell short of the amount needed to eliminate the waitlist
altogether.
Since 2001, Developmental Pathways has utilized mill levy funding to best meet the
needs of the individuals and families we serve while responding to the referendum
emphases. This report provides a brief summary of the programs, quality of
services, and infrastructure supported by mill levy funding.
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DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES & DELAYS
How are these terms defined & how does someone qualify for services?

DISABILITY
A developmental disability (DD) is defined by Colorado state
statute 25.5-10-202: (26); (a) "Intellectual and
developmental disability" means a disability that manifests
before the person reaches twenty-two years of age, that
constitutes a substantial disability to the affected person,
and that is attributable to an intellectual and developmental
disability or related conditions, including Prader-Willi
syndrome, cerebral palsy, epilepsy, autism, or other
neurological conditions when the condition or conditions
result in impairment of general intellectual functioning or
adaptive behavior similar to that of a person with an
intellectual and developmental disability. Unless otherwise
specifically stated, the federal definition of "developmental
disability" found in 42 U.S.C. sec. 15001 et seq., does not
apply.
(b) "Person with an intellectual and developmental disability"
means a person determined by a community-centered board
to have an intellectual and developmental disability and
includes a child with a developmental delay.
Often, developmental disabilities are identified at birth, but
sometimes they are not identified until later. A person who
meets the criteria above must have a medical diagnosis
verifying their disability and undergo testing to be eligible
for services. (25.5-10-202)

ACCESSING PROGRAMS
Programs for eligible adults and children with developmental
disabilities/delays are funded through Medicaid, Medicaid Waivers,
state funds, and private insurance for covered individuals. Services
within each type of program are available based upon the
identification and prioritization of individual needs. Services to
address the identified needs are purchased, provided, and billed for
directly by qualified providers such as Program Approved Service
Agencies (PASAs) using program funds as authorized through the
individual’s plan.
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DELAY
Colorado state statute also defines developmental delay:
(c) "Child with a developmental delay" means:
(I) A person less than five years of age with delayed
development as defined by rule of the state board; or
(II) A person less than five years of age who is at risk of
having an intellectual and developmental disability as
defined by rule of the state board. A delay is evaluated by
failing to meet developmental milestones such as speech
acquisition or coping behaviors. Other children exhibit
factors that put them at a high risk of having a
developmental disability or are born with a DD such as
Down Syndrome or Fragile X. Both delays and disabilities in
children under 5 years must be verified by Early Intervention
criteria for a child to qualify for services. For a complete list
of established conditions that qualify a child, please see the
Early Intervention Colorado website.

DEVELOPMENTAL PATHWAYS PROGRAMS
We offer services spanning an individual's lifetime, including case management and coordination through
our 3 core departments: Early Intervention, Case Management/Program Quality, & Community Outreach.
The graphic below was created to help families understand how they can access services throughout their
time with us. Greater detail for each program can be found on our website.

KEY

Early Intervention

Infant

Community Outreach Dept.

Child

[ Birth up to 3 yrs. ]

Case Management

Adult

[ 3 yrs. through 18 yrs. ]

[ 18 yrs. & up ]

INTAKE & ENROLLMENT

Each program has their own system of bringing new folks into services at DP it's the universal first step for anyone seeking assistance.

FSSP

EARLY
INTERVENTION

SLS WAIVER

Family Support Services
Program assists families
in caring for a loved one
with a developmental
disability or delay.

EI provides a variety of
services for children with
a developmental
disability or delay.

Supported Living Services
Waiver provides a variety
of services for adults living
on their own, with family,
or in the community.
CO Avg. Spend: $13,140/yr.

Funds range from $1,200/yr. $1,500/yr.

No funding limit. Funding based
on individual needs.

Children's Habilitation Residential
Program Waiver supports children with
complex behavioral and/or medical
needs at risk of placement out of home.

CHRP WAIVER*
*Preparation for this program began
in FY19, but active case management
did not begin until FY20

STATE SLS
A state-funded alternative
to the SLS Waiver. Supports
individuals in the
community who may not
qualify for a waiver.
CO Avg. Allocation: $12,800/yr.

Children's Extensive Services
Waiver helps families with a
child who needs 24/7 care

CES WAIVER
CO Avg. Spend: $12,610/yr.

To learn more
about how
Unmet Needs
funding is
distributed,
visit our
website.

5

yrs
Determination of
disability

DD WAIVER

14

yrs
Placed on waitlist
for adult waivers

DD or Comprehensive
Waiver provides 24/7
care for individuals with
high needs and has only a
limited number of spots.
CO Avg. Spend: $79,400/yr.

COMMUNITY OUTREACH
PROGRAM

A unique DP program that helps those waiting for services or those with unmet needs
active in State or Waiver programs
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EXPENDITURE SUMMARY
Mill levy dollars not only aid the success of the programs provided by Developmental Pathways, but
they also support our organization and the community in other ways. In addition to Pathways programs,
funding is allocated to direct care programs designated through Medicaid Waivers, management and
support programs, and community-driven initiatives. Below is a summarized chart of expenditures by
percentage as well as a brief overview of the types of activities that are funded by each category of
dollars. A detailed financial can be found in the addendum to this report.

Total: $15,699,685
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55%

26%

12%

1%

PASAs & Programs
supported by DP

Case Management &
Program Quality

Community
Outreach

Early
Intervention

5%

1%

Fund Balance

Other
"Other" includes: Family Support & Youth Housing services

Unrestricted Fund Balance
The unrestricted fund balance represents the number of months that Developmental Pathways could
operate without further local, state, or federal dollars. These funds provide the individuals and families
we support with financial security and peace of mind that Developmental Pathways could sustain itself
under unforeseen financial challenges. These undesignated net assets are in line with industry best
practice as it is recommended for nonprofits to have about 4 months of operating reserves.*

Undesignated
Net Assets

Annual
Expense

Monthly
Expense

$15,623,745

$43,696,977

$3,641,415

4.29 Months
of Operation
36% Fund
Balance

Management & General Fees
Total Revenue
$43,985,691

/

Management &
General Fees

Depreciation
Expense

Revised
M&G

$5,442,465

($782,121)

$4,660,344

=
10.6%
Management & General
*It is generally established that nonprofit organizations should seek to maintain a minimum reserve balance of 3-6 months of operating expenses
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WHO WE SERVE | Overview
Among the 8,560 people we serve, a small percentage do not or no longer, reside in our catchment area of
Arapahoe County, Douglas County, and the City of Aurora. These people are represented in the Other category
which may include folks who initially lived in our area, but have moved away and kept receiving services
from us or those folks who reside in the portion of Aurora that is Adams County. The majority of the Other
category is comprised of the latter group of people living in northern Aurora. You can read more below about
our new partnership with Adams County to receive funds for the residents that we support.

Arapahoe
62%

Other

8,560
Total

7%

Douglas
31%

How we serve Adams County
Over the years, the support we provide to the residents of Adams County with I/DD has grown. Developmental Pathways
currently supports 17% of people who are connected to a CCB & receive I/DD services in Adams County. Beginning in April
2019, Adams County allocated funding directly to individuals and families supported by Developmental Pathways. We
anticipate our involvement in this county will continue to grow and we will work closely with the Adams County
commissioners to best serve people with I/DD in this area.
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SERVING 8,560 PEOPLE
from birth to end of life

GENDER

ETHNICITY

AGE

64% Male
36% Female

75% 0-18 yrs. old
25% 18+ yrs.

PROGRAMS
47% Early Intervention
19% Community Outreach
10% SLS Waiver
4% FSSP
10% DD Waiver
9% CES Waiver
1% State SLS

69% White
12% Hispanic
10% Black
4% Asian
5% Other

MAJOR DIAGNOSES
23% Developmental Delay (EI)
17% Developmental Disability*
11% Autism
5% Seizure Disorder/Epilepsy
4% Down Syndrome
4% Cerebral Palsy
3% DD/Mental Illness
*formerly Mental Retardation

The Impact of Population Growth
Over the past several years, Pathways has processed between 300-400 new intakes and enrollments per year. This is a
significant jump from previous years when we were only enrolling 50-100 people annually. According to the Administration
for Community Living (https://acl.gov/), it is estimated that between 7 and 8 million Americans of all ages (3% of the general
population) have an intellectual disability. Therefore, our numbers increase when the general population increases. We
expect that trend to continue for the next 1-5 years due to the increasingly high growth rate for Douglas (15%) and Arapahoe
(11%) counties. https://www.census.gov/quickfacts
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WHO WE SERVE | Arapahoe County
This data is an overview of the population we serve in Arapahoe County. For a more detailed breakdown,
please see the addendum included with this report.

ETHNICITY

White

Asian

American Indian/Alaskan

Hispanic

Black

Other/Unknown

Hawaiian/Pacific Islander

*Where multiple ethnicities were
listed, the first ethnicity was used.

Asian/Pacific Islander

GENDER

AGE

1,909

3,391

9

0-3 (47.17%)
14-18 (4.91%)
30-40 (6.64%)
60+ (1.91%)

3-6 (8.36%)
6-14 (13.15%)
18-21 (4.32%)
21-30 (8.04%)
40-50 (3.34%)
50-60 (2.17%)

ARAPAHOE COUNTY

DIAGNOSIS
The term Developmental Disability
(DD) encompasses many diagnoses,
all of which begin at birth and last
for the duration of a person's life.
Some children may experience
developmental delays that resolve
with intervention. The chart at right
shows the most common adult DD
diagnoses for the population we
serve. In addition, Early Intervention
serves 2,492 children with
developmental delays in Arapahoe
County. In 2018, the Colorado state
legislature passed Senate Bill 18096 which eliminates the outdated
"Mental Retardation" term and
replaces it with "Intellectual or
Developmental Disability." Our data
reflect that change as well.

Intellectual/Developmental
Disability*

Cerebral Palsy
DD/Mental Illness

Down Syndrome
ADHD

Seizure Disorder/Epilepsy
Autism

*formerly Mental Retardation

PROGRAM
EI

OBSS
CES

2,492

426
62

SLS

FSSP

538

173

3
DD
620

CO
986

SSLS
KEY
CES- Children's Extensive Waiver
CO- Community Outreach Program

DD- Developmental Disability Waiver
EI- Early Intervention

FSSP- Family Support Services Program
OBSS- Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act
Specialized Services

SLS- Supported Living Services Waiver
SLSS- State SLS

Due to the high and continually changing number of qualifying diagnoses for children in EI, all EI children are grouped into one diagnosis category
Individuals may have more than one diagnosis. Diagnoses for adults are limited to the options currently available in the Community Contracts
Management System (CCMS) by the Division for Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities.
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WHO WE SERVE | Douglas County
This data is an overview of the population we serve in Douglas County. For a more detailed breakdown,
please see the addendum included with this report.

ETHNICITY

White

Asian

American Indian/Alaskan

Hispanic

Black

Hawaiian/Pacific Islander

Other/Unknown
Asian/Pacific Islander

GENDER

*Where multiple
ethnicities were
listed, the first
ethnicity was used.

AGE

958

1,687

11

0-3 (51.38%)
14-18 (6.16%)
30-40 (3.21%)
60+ (0.34%)

3-6 (9.38%)
6-14 (16.07%)
18-21 (4.31%)
21-30 (7.52%)
40-50 (1.17%)
50-60 (0.45%)

DOUGLAS COUNTY

DIAGNOSIS
The term Developmental Disability
(DD) encompasses many diagnoses,
all of which begin at birth and last
for the duration of a person's life.
Some children may experience
developmental delays that resolve
with intervention. The chart at right
shows the most common adult DD
diagnoses for the population we
serve. In addition, Early Intervention
serves 1,358 children with
developmental delays in Douglas
County. In 2018, the Colorado state
legislature passed Senate Bill 18096 which eliminates the outdated
"Mental Retardation" term and
replaces it with "Intellectual or
Developmental Disability." Our data
reflect that change as well.

Intellectual/Developmental
Disability*

Cerebral Palsy
DD/Mental Illness

Down Syndrome
ADHD

Seizure Disorder/Epilepsy
Autism

*formerly Mental Retardation

PROGRAM
EI

OBSS

1,358
12

CES
247

SLS

FSSP

249

123

1
CO

DD

555

100

SSLS
KEY
CES- Children's Extensive Waiver
CO- Community Outreach Program

DD- Developmental Disability Waiver
FSSP- Family Support Services Program

EI- Early Intervention
SLS- Supported Living Services Waiver
SSLS- State SLS

OBSS- Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act
Specialized Services

Due to the high and continually changing number of qualifying diagnoses for children in EI, all EI children are grouped into one diagnosis category
Individuals may have more than one diagnosis. Diagnoses for adults are limited to the options currently available in the Community Contracts Management System (CCMS) by the
Division for Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities.
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EARLY
INTERVENTION
Who We Are

What We Do

95 staff members

The Early Intervention (EI) program (Part C) provides services
and supports for families who have a child up to age 3 with a
25% delay in one or more areas of development or have a child
with a qualifying diagnosis. The EI team is composed of service
coordinators, intake & referral specialists, therapists,
and data & billing specialists who partner with families to:

How We Use Mill Levy Funds
Mill levy funds enhance Early Intervention's focus
on strengthening community and family education,
school partnerships, and staff development efforts
in the following ways:
Funding ongoing training & professional
development opportunities to promote
employee retention & increase family
satisfaction
Hiring additional service coordinators to lower
caseload & enable staff to provide better care
coordination and resource development for
children and families
Supporting school partnerships to ensure
successful transitions for children & families
from program to program
Educating schools, families, & community
organizations on eligibility, referral and the long
term benefit of EI

Help families learn ways to promote their child’s
development within everyday routines & activities in
their natural environment
Deliver services in a family-centered way
Provide direct services to support each family’s ability
to help their child reach their full potential
Connect with school districts for eligibility
determinations

76
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Referr ge
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EARLY INTERVENTION

Served 4,056 kids & families

Partnerships &
Successes

equating to 25-30% of
Colorado's EI population

With Community Outreach,
created a series of short videos
to support families transitioning
services & supports.

Kudos

With the help of our Finance
department, transitioned to a
cost-reimbursement model
that better funds the actual
costs of service delivery &
coordination, complying with
guidelines set by Department
of Human Services & Early
Intervention Colorado.

Evaluated 80+ children in
a 4-month period to
collect data as part of the
In-Home Evaluation Pilot
to inform best practices.

“Thank you so much for your high
level of care and sincere concern for
children -- it is uncharted! You make
a positive difference, and we are so
thankful to have known you!” With
warm regards, - an EI Family
“I just wanted to take a moment to let
you know how much we appreciate your
service coordinator (Alex's) help today.
She was more than willing to stay and
take on an additional evaluation today,
and for that, we are exceedingly grateful."
– Child Find School District Partner

Meet Anne

2019 Outstanding Service
Coordinator of the Year

The Early Intervention Colorado Interagency Coordinating Council (CICC)
recognized one exceptional service coordinator who went above and beyond
the requirements of their job to ensure that services for children in EI and
their families follow evidence-based practices. Selected from nominees of
service coordinators from all over the state, Anne Buchanan received the
2019 Outstanding Service Coordinator Award. This year, Anne, celebrated her
10th anniversary with DP as a Senior Service Coordinator. Over the years, she
has mentored, trained, and served as a key role model on the EI team.
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COMMUNITY
OUTREACH

What We Do

Who We Are
25 staff members

How We Use Mill Levy Funds
Our department was created by mill levy funding in
2012 to serve people waiting for state & federally
funded programs. With the exception of FSSP, EFMP, &
HCV (listed at right), mill levy funding supplements all
of our activities to support folks in Douglas &
Arapahoe counties with unmet needs. We do this by:
Directly funding needs that meet
specific criteria
Partnering with organizations to provide
discounted services
Coordinating the care of people waiting
for services
Spearheading community initiatives
Offering training & support to
community partners
Funding parent & sibling support groups

The Community Outreach department is a Pathwaysspecific program designed to assist folks whose needs are
not fully met by other programs. Often, support comes in
the form of monetary resources and connection to other
community organizations. The many functions of this
team include:
Service coordination
Community partnerships
Provider of resources
Fund unmet needs
Lead Initiatives
Administer Programs:
Community Outreach Program (CO)
Exceptional Family Member Program (EFMP)
Family Support Services Program (FSSP)
Housing Choice Voucher (HCV)

Summer Camp Success
For the fourth year, DP provided five scholarships to CO/FS to attend
GLO’s Community Connector summer camp of fun out in the
community. For eight weeks, the camp provides individually assessed
supports specifically for high medical/high behavioral needs.
“So amazing!!! None of our family can imagine what our summer would be
like if he didn't have this activity 4 days a week. He is so entertainment
intensive that it would be a huge burden on all of us every day to keep him
happy, and I can't imagine that we would really be able to keep him happy
with just our resources. But with GLO Camp, the wonderful staff there, the
well-matched peers, and the perfect balance of fun, active outings, he is so
content and easy to manage the rest of the time. The only negative feeling I
get when thinking about GLO camp is a slight panicky feeling about what if
they didn't exist, then what? So thank you very, very much from me, my
husband, and our other four kids for providing this for him!!”
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COMMUNITY OUTREACH

Partnerships
We partner with many community organizations to provide
discounted or free services for people enrolled in the Community
Outreach program. Below are just a few of the organizations
we've partnered with in the last fiscal year.
INCLUSIVE COMMUNITY | Second Star to the Right
We partnered to develop a sensory-friendly storytime event
that has grown to monthly events and "Story Time for All."
RESPITE | Night Lights Parker
Night Lights Parker provides a free parents' night out one

Friday a month to families of children with special needs and
their siblings, ages one month-13 years. They have an average
of 10-15 children per night for 10 nights (3.5 hours each night).
Developmental Pathways provided financial support for new

Successes
2,278
Individuals
served

154
Organizations
supported

$36,586
In-kind donations
received

equipment and program expenses.
EQUINE THERAPY | Horseback Miracles
Draper Sensory Method is the most advanced equine-assisted
sensory-based therapy program available. More than 25 years
of research and experience allowed them to develop a unique
connection between a participant and a horse where the horse
acts as a catalyst in connecting the human brain functions.
WEEKEND RESPITE | Easter Seals
Twenty-nine families benefited from the monthly overnight
weekend respite. Each family participated an average of four
times for a total of 115 weekend spots from June 2018 through
May 2019. Each weekend consisted of 48 hours of respite, for
a total of 5,520 hours of respite through the pilot program.

425
Volunteer hours
served

7,000
Recipients of
resource newsletter

537
Community
contacts made

138
People served
through Housing
Choice Voucher
Program

A family recipient of Community Outreach scholarship funds participates in a
rafting trip organized by National Sports Center for the Disabled (NSCD)

105
New relationships
built
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COMMUNITY OUTREACH

Board Designated Funding
For the past four years, our Board of Directors designated funds to address critical areas of need. These critical areas
were determined by extensive community outreach assessments. In response to community input, the Board
dedicated these funds solely to initiatives that aligned with the mission of Developmental Pathways: Transportation,
Respite, and 3+. We closed out work on these 3 existing initiatives and further developed plans for the Community
Engagement and Housing Exploration Initiatives. Our Community Outreach department is uniquely positioned to
execute these initiatives and monitor how best to serve our local communities. For more details on each initiative,
please visit our website.

TRANSPORTATION

RESPITE

3+

Increase & support
convenient,
affordable, & efficient
transportation

Educate caregivers
about benefits of
respite & increase
provider options

Connect families with
children aging out of
EI to funding &
resources

IMPACT

IMPACT

30 adults in DRMAC volunteer

5,520 hours of respite for 29

Provided 59 I/DD-specific

driver database

families provided through the

trainings

20 individuals participated in

monthly overnight weekend

Awarded $203,510 in grants

the new Ride Share Education

respite pilot with Easter Seals

Developed videos and webpage

Program

125 children participated in three

of resources for 3+ families and

Distributed $209,500 in grants

"Respitality" events

early childhood providers

Developed a transportation

Awarded $191,649 in grants

resource webpage

$31,000 given for emergency
respite needs

Rideshare Continues
After the Training
"We counted how many times in the last WEEK she has used it [Uber], 8!!!!
One day she went to her PT appointment and home all on her own. Truly
something I never imagined she could do without me. We would never have
felt so comfortable allowing her to use this without your class. Because of
this, she is more independent than I ever dreamed and there is still so much
more ahead of her. Thank you and the very generous funds today was such
a blessing as well."
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IMPACT

COMMUNITY OUTREACH

Family Engagement Initiative

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The Family Engagement Initiative, now Community Engagement,
has expanded reach to engage the broader community with
partnerships and education to address internal and external systems
change that will positively impact the I/DD community.
Community Engagement will include efforts on education,
employment, housing, self and parent advocacy, transition,
and transportation.

VISION
Build a broader, powerful and more inclusive community.
MISSION
Cultivate knowledge and partnerships to equip people for
engagement and collaboration in their communities.

HOUSING EXPLORATION INITIATIVE

INTENT
To explore and support the expansion of
residential options for adults with I/DD,
taking into consideration their interests,
preferences, & needs.

ACTIVITIES
The Housing Exploration Committee, comprised of family members,
advocates and service providers of people with I/DDs, met to discuss
current and future housing projects.
Beginning February 2019, a nationally known Subject Matter Expert
began providing informational presentations to families, potential
residents, professionals, and providers educating all on potential
housing models, assessing interests and needs, and sharing viable
solutions to help people in services live a meaningful life.

We Love the Arts Spring Break Camps
Community Outreach supported two week-long We Love The
Arts Camps during Douglas & Arapahoe counties' spring breaks.
Providers, Swallow Hill, Healing with Heart, Phamaly
Theatre & Angels of Colorado teamed up to provide music
therapy, art therapy, an actors' workshop, and fun daily activities.
"My daughter is 12 and absolutely loved the spring break camp! She
was so excited to go each day - the play, the art projects, and the music
were all so fun! What a blast! She asked if she could do that camp all
summer long!"
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CASE MANAGEMENT &
PROGRAM QUALITY
What We Do

Who We Are
158 staff members across
multiple cost centers

How We Use
Mill Levy Funds
Mill levy funds supplement the following
support teams: Crisis, Intake and Systems
Navigation, Provider Liaison, Program Quality,
and Benefits/Medicaid. Each of these teams
plays an ancillary role in ensuring that people
with I/DD and their families receive quality
care in the most seamless way possible. We
also use mill levy to directly fund needs that
meet specific criteria under our Unmet Needs
Policy and Procedures for health, safety,
medical, behavioral, and professional service
needs not otherwise met.

Support individuals
seeking long-term care &
other I/DD supports

Intake &
Systems
Navigation
Support

Assist with required surveys
& performance audits, provide
quality data metrics and reporting to
ensure we are meeting or exceeding
core performance outcomes
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Program
Quality

The Case Management & Program Quality department
assists folks with I/DD who are enrolled in a state or
federally funded program including State SLS, SLS waiver,
DD waiver, CES waiver, & as of July 2019, the CHRP
waiver*. State and federal Medicaid pays for 4 core
functions of case management: Assessments, Service
Planning, Referrals to external service providers, &
Monitoring visits. These functions are detailed on the
following page. However, many more functions are
necessary to fully meet an individual's needs. Because of
that, we've developed supporting teams that receive mill
levy funding to ensure there are no service gaps for any of
our folks. Together, our teams support people through each
step of their process to receive care.

Crisis
Team

Core Case
Management

Hands-on + in-depth support
for folks navigating complex
and crisis-level needs

Provider
Team

Medicaid &
Benefits
Support

Ongoing technical
assistance & outreach to
provider agencies,
ensuring good customer
service outcomes

Assist with navigating Medicaid
& other benefits systems

*Preparation for this program began in FY19, but
active case management did not begin until FY20

CASE MANAGEMENT & PROGAM QUALITY

How We Support Quality Outcomes
We have developed extensive quality assurance procedures to ensure that we provide high-quality
services and are compliant with state rules and regulations. Program Quality has many components
carried out by many different teams to keep a pulse on health and safety outcomes and overall quality
assurance for individuals in service.

MONITORING
is a regulatory requirement of all
case management agencies for all
Medicaid Waiver recipients. In
monitoring visits, case managers
check on the health and safety of
individuals receiving services and
to ensure services are
appropriate and being utilized in
accordance with an individual’s
Service Plan.

Monitoring

Tracking, Contract
Deliverables, Data Analysis,
Reporting

Surveys, Audits,
Reviews

7,406 monitorings completed
Critical Incident
Reports
HUMAN RIGHTS
COMMITTEE (HRC)
Under regulation, all Community
Centered Boards are required to
have an HRC, a third-party
mechanism designed to help
safeguard the legal rights of
persons receiving services. HRCs
also review investigations of
allegations of mistreatment. DP
runs 3 HRCs.
703 HRC reviews performed

Human Rights
Committee

Investigations

INVESTIGATIONS
Case management agencies & other community resources
(law enforcement and Adult Protective Services/Child
Protective Services) are required to investigate all alleged
incidents of mistreatment.

SURVEYS, AUDITS +
DATA, & REPORTING
We have an internal Program
Quality team that helps us stay on
target with all required surveys and
contract deliverable reporting. This
team is crucial to ensure we are
meeting the requirements outlined
under the various authorities
governing our work. This team also
helps support the advancement of
more sophisticated tracking and
reporting tools.

CRITICAL INCIDENT REPORT
an actual or alleged event that
creates the risk of serious harm to
the health or welfare of a client and
may endanger or negatively impact
the mental and/or physical well-being
of an individual in service. Must be
reported to HCPF in 1 business day.
527 CIRs reported & resolved

82 investigations performed

A note about Conflict-Free Case Management
Developmental Pathways actively demonstrates Conflict-Free Case Management through our placement procedures. When
an individual needs supports through the Case Management department, a non-identifying Request for Proposal (RFP) is sent
to all service agencies in our area. An annual report of all RFPs for external services by DP can be found on our website.
On occasion, an individual/family will know which provider they prefer at the outset and an RFP will not be sent. The
individual/family will provide Developmental Pathways with the information on their selection and an Interdisciplinary Team
(IDT) meeting will be held to construct the Service Plan (SP). An IDT is a support team for the person in service which could
include case managers, family members, caregivers, and/or therapists. Developmental Pathways also sends out a weekly
newsletter to inform families of community resources available to them.
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Roadmap to Care
Follow along with our fictional character, Sue, as she and her family initiate contact with Developmental Pathways
and seek the services that are right for her through the Case Management/Program Quality Department.

MEET

Sue

CONTACT INTAKE
So, Sue's family reaches out to their local
CCB to see how they can be served.
intake@dpcolo.org
303-858-2260
www.dpcolo.org/get-started

19 years old
Lives at home with both
parents
Autism Spectrum
diagnosis

Sue & her parents decide that she is
ready to find a meaningful job, try new
activities, and build friendships.

INTAKE &
ENROLLMENT
After meeting with an Intake Case Manager & filling
out all the necessary paperwork, Sue finds out she's
eligible for the Supported Living Services program.
She's enrolled and soon meets her Enrollment Case
Management Team.

PERSON-CENTERED
SERVICES
A Case Manager contacts Sue & her family
to create a Service Plan for the upcoming
year. Each Service Plan is unique to the
person & puts the person & family in control
of:
SETTING SPECIFIC GOALS

The Case Manager
helps Sue identify &
contact providers, if
desired. Requests
for Proposals
(RFPs) are sent out
& she, along with
her family, weigh
their options.

Intake
Team

SUE

Active
Team

Enrollment
Team

Sue's top priorities are
finding a job & making
friends, so she & her family
contact & interview
providers. These providers
will find her a job & facilitate
community outings to make
new friends.

PRIORITIZING NEEDED SERVICES
SELECTING CARE PROVIDERS

ONGOING CARE
Sue's Case Manager will visit her at least 4 times a year to see how
things are going and ensure that she's happy & healthy. She'll be able to
make changes to her services or providers at any time. Sue, her family, &
her Case Manager will check in at the end of the year to make sure she is
supported in achieving goals that are meaningful to her.
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Targeted Case Management
Developmental Pathways is contracted with the Office of Community Living (OCL) under the Colorado
Department of Health Care Policy and Financing (HCPF) to provide case management supports to
individuals enrolled in both State-only-funded programs and individuals enrolled in Home and Community
Based Services Medicaid (HCBS) waivers (CES, DD, SLS, CHRP).The Code of Colorado Regulations (CCR)
stipulates 4 specific categories that comprise Targeted Case Management (TCM). If an action falls outside of
these defined categories, it is not considered TCM and cannot be reimbursed as TCM.

ASSESSMENT

SERVICE PLANNING

Comprehensive assessment &
periodic reassessment of individual
needs for: medical, educational,
social, or other services.

Development and periodic revision of a
specific care (service) plan based on
information collected during assessment. A
service plan specifies goals & actions to fulfill
a person's needs & desires.

After Sue is determined to meet the
eligibility criteria for the SLS Waiver,
she meets with an enrollment case
manager who dives deeper into Sue's
support needs and helps Sue prioritize
those needs for the upcoming year.

REFERRALS
Referrals and related activities connect
individuals to service providers that meet
the needs they identified. This includes
assistance scheduling and referring to other
providers as needed.

Sue's case manager helps her
identify & contact service
providers. Case Managers may
offer factual guidance about
providers to support the individual
and family in selecting a provider.

Sue & her family identify her top
priorities as finding a job & making
friends. So, together with a case
manager, they build a service plan
around these priorities.

Sue

MONITORING
Monitoring & follow up includes activities
necessary to ensure a person's service plan is
implemented adequately. These visits must
occur quarterly & ensure that: health &
safety needs are met, services are in
accordance with the service plan, the
individual is observed receiving services
where they are delivered.
Sue's active case manager checks in
each quarter to ensure she's happy
with her services and healthy. Sue
can change providers or services at
any point.
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Understanding Referrals & Enrollments
After reaching a peak in FY15, enrollments into the I/DD Medicaid Waiver programs have continued at a steady
pace with the most notable growth occurring in the HCBS-DD waiver. This growth is primarily due to newly
authorized DD enrollments from the statewide waitlist. In FY19, through a combination of youth transitions,
emergency enrollments, and waitlist enrollments, DP enrolled 74 more individuals into DD than the previous year
(a 187% increase over FY18). We anticipate we may complete as many as 500 waiver program enrollments in
FY20, including nearly 100 anticipated DD waitlist enrollments.

1

2

REFERRAL

3

DD DETERMINATION

A referral or resource call is simply someone
looking for human services in the
community. Of the nearly 2,000 referral
calls fielded in FY2019, most were seeking
support other than I/DD-related resources.

People who may meet I/DD criteria
complete the Intake process with us and
apply for a Developmental Disability
(DD) Determination.

ENROLLMENT
Enrollment is defined as the start of
services for one of the following programs:
HCBS waivers (CES, DD, SLS), State SLS,
and/or OBRA. These enrollment numbers
only include CES, DD, & SLS waivers.

REFERRALS

2k

1k

0

2013

2014

ENROLLMENTS

CES waitlist
eliminated

2016

2017

2018

2019

DD resources
offered

SLS waitlist
eliminated

200

100

0
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2015

2013

2014

2015
CES

2016
SLS

2017
DD*

2018

2019

*DD enrollments reflect individuals who were likely served on other waivers
(SLS, CES) who transition into the DD waiver. For more information on
waitlists and how people transition from waiver aervices, see the next page.
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Understanding Waitlists
What is a Waitlist?

Let's Talk Timelines

A backlog of people waiting to enroll in
a program because a) the government
ran out of spots or b) the General Fund
ran out of money for additional spots,
or a combination of the two.

A timeline is a marker of a person's needs
and preferences regarding the program
they're waiting for. There are 3 main
timelines that describe a person's level
of need:

ASAA
Now Please

How many waitlists
are there?
It depends on the aforementioned
factors. Currently, there are 3 I/DD
programs with waitlists: HCBS-DD
waiver, FSSP, & State SLS. Waitlists
were eliminated for HCBS CES & SLS
Medicaid waivers.

Safety Net
Maybe
Someday

See Date
Please
ask/offer at my
18th birthday

SO WHAT'S THE TAKEAWAY?
It's probably most helpful to focus on folks waiting with a timeline of ASAA because
they are expressing desire for a different level of support than they're currently
receiving. Take the DD Waiver as an example, which has historically had quite a long
waitlist. There were 437 people waiting "ASAA" for the DD waiver as of June 2019.
Of those people, 363 were receiving services in another I/DD program.
Individuals waiting "ASAA" for DD Waiver

353

Currently Enrolled In
SLS Waiver
None Specified
(with DP)

74

State SLS/OBRA

Why Waitlist
Numbers
are Tricky
It's possible for one
person to wait for
multiple programs at
the same time.
EX: someone waiting as
"See Date" for both the
SLS and DD waivers
because they're not yet 18
yrs. old and unsure of
which program they will be
able to enroll in.

It's also possible for a
person to be enrolled
in a program & on the
waitlist for another.
EX: A child who is
currently enrolled in CES
(no waitlist) and waiting
for the DD waiver as "See
Date," meaning they will
be eligible to enroll once
they turn 18.

Community
Outreach

You may be asking, "Why is the DD Waiver so hard to get onto?"
Great question. The HCBS-DD waiver provides access to 24-hour care for folks with very high needs. Because of this, people
enrolled in this waiver have access to as much funding as needed. So, the short answer is because the funding required is
substantial, and no state legislature has committed to providing it. 468 new DD waiver spots were opened in Colorado in the
calendar year 2018 because of House Bill 18-1407 and other waitlist management efforts. DP received authorization to
enroll 100+ out of the total resources opened. This was the largest increase we've had in a very long time.
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Successes

91%
Annual satisfaction
rate for case
management services

900+
Medicaid &
financial eligibility
issues resolved

6,500+
Service planning
documents
completed & delivered

455+
Enrollments &
transfers from other
CCBs completed

Successfully
transitioned CHRP
Waiver to CCB
management

464
DD & Delay
Determinations
performed

Unmet Needs Funding

Unmet Needs Funding supports people experiencing an emergency and/or who have an identified need that
cannot be met by any other means related to: Health, medical, and/or safety needs OR health, medical, safety,
and/or behavioral concerns, which put current or future placement at risk.

Managed 139
requests

8%

15%

Emergency & Crisis Placement Support
Respite

16%

Transportation
Assistive & Adaptive Needs

Allocated $345,000+
(31% to Douglas County &
69% to Arapahoe County)

Medical & Dental Needs

14%

32%

15%
25

Other (Habilitation, Behavioral, etc)

CASE MANAGEMENT & PROGRAM QUALITY

Community Feedback
"You folks are so easy to deal with and you make
everything so much easier to understand. It's nice to know
that I have such reliable and responsive folks on my
team when Tara and I have a problem or a
concern. THANK YOU.”
Parent of person served by DP
“When someone truly cares about their job… they can
make such a huge difference on the planet. From the
bottom of my heart, I wish to express my gratitude and
appreciation for Jenny. She helped me in my hour of
need and I will never forget it.”
Brother of person served by DP

The Kip McCarten Award
This award, named for an employee who
dedicated 30+ years of her life to the field,
acknowledges & celebrates the effort and work
of outstanding CM and PQ staff. Staff are
nominated and selected by peers based on
contributions to the organization and/or
department; excellence in integrity,
communication, and collaboration; dedication to
learning and development; work quality.

Donna Pieper

"I know we often complain when something is going
wrong…and fail to call out the great things we see.
I so appreciate Developmental Pathways, you guys
provide superior supports not just to the individuals but to
the PASA’s which is the recipe for great supports.
Thank you.”
PASA Director
"I just want you to know how impressed I have been over the
past month in working with you and your team on these oh
so very complex patients. Your leadership and organization
with your staff has been phenomenal and I want you and your
leadership to know how fortunate we feel here at UCHealth to
have this working collaboration with you and your team. I also
want to thank you and your staff for the detailed and timely
communications around these challenging placement issues.
I am excited that we are going to have regular
communications and collaborations to improve and
streamline how we both can best serve these patients..."
Thank you,
Manager of Inpatient Social Work Services
University of Colorado Hospital

Julie Widmann

Senior Case Manager

Training Program Administrator

Donna has a vast knowledge of the
work we do and as a Senior Case
Manager, she has excelled in passing
that knowledge on to others. Donna
supports the Training team with
facilitating training and providing
senior support to new Case
Managers on a regular basis.
Donna’s great care for the people
she serves and for the department
shows in all her work and helps set
her apart as one of the most skilled
case managers in the department.

Julie has an extremely positive
approach to all aspects of her job,
makes learning fun and interactive.
She has shown an incredible amount
of understanding for the type of
training program that this agency
needs and had delivered exceptional
models that give each employee a
strong platform to begin their
career with Developmental
Pathways. Julie is strong and
inspiring and deserves recognition
in the excellence that she shows up
with every single day.
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STAFF DEVELOPMENT & ENGAGEMENT
One of our core emphases with mill levy funding is staff development and retention. Investing in our staff
improves our culture and ensures high-quality outcomes for the people we serve. We aim to support employees
through every step of their employment experience, ideally from ‘hire to retire.’ Towards that end, we view
employee’s time with us as an interconnected experience, with special emphasis in the following key areas:

Total Rewards
With unemployment just over 2.0% in the Denver market, we must ensure our offerings, or total rewards, are competitive
to attract and retain a talented workforce.
Compensation
We review compensation strategies against market
data annually in addition to ‘aging’ existing wage data
forward using updated employment cost indices.
Biannually, we refresh all job descriptions, compare
them to market data, and reset our internal wage grades
accordingly.
Benefits
Our insured benefits package is reviewed annually
where we aim to offset increases by making minimal
changes & cost sharing when premiums must increase.
This year, we experienced a 0% increase with enhanced
options such as a third medical plan option & an
employer-covered infertility benefit.

Work Life Balance
Our work-life balance remains a competitive edge. Most
employees work a four-day, 36-hour workweek, with the
flexibility to work remotely as well; a benefit that's often
cited by employees as one of our most valuable offerings.
We believe in the power of flexing work schedules
according to our employee’s needs. This philosophy also
extends to leave time as we created a company-specific
leave program for those not yet eligible for Family and
Medical Leave and encourage staff to use PTO to step
away, recharge, and relax.

Turnover: 30.94%
Turnover trends within case management traditionally trend
slightly higher than other CCB departments, e.g. EI. This is
generally similar across other local CCBs and nationally within
case management; and is compounded further by Denver’s
strong job growth opportunities and low unemployment.
Consequently, DP leadership intentionally tasked a team to
analyze and implement engagement and retention strategies
aimed at reducing turnover.
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Professional Development

Talent Acquisition

As part of our Total Rewards program, we provide all
staff the opportunity to grow professionally by
participating in the Risin' Up professional development
series. Training topics include: providing feedback,
managing up, turning conflict into collaboration, &
change management. The training team also actively
supports team cohesion and performance with
consultations, coaching, & succession planning.

In Denver’s competitive hiring market, it’s imperative
to be innovative in proactively sourcing both active
and passive candidates. Our recruiters routinely
employ multi-channel sourcing networks, including big
job boards and niche sites, community college job fairs,
referral incentives, professional organizations,
& talent communities.

Case Management Admin Training

Staff Development
By Department
Each of our departments takes a
unique approach to staff engagement
& professional development with the
support of our human resources &
training teams. Below are a few
specific ways that teams are improving
the way they work together to serve
folks with I/DD.

The Case Management team created an administrative
training program to prepare new hires for positionspecific tasks and skills. This cut down on overall training
times and improved employee transitions into new roles.

EI Service Coordination Delivery Pilot
The EI team implemented a pilot designed by our service
coordinators and refined by our program managers to
explore a new way to approach service coordination
supports and services to families that dramatically
reduced our team’s daily workload while improving
outcomes for families.

Community Outreach Succession Planning
The Community Outreach implemented individualized
professional development plans for each staff member
to help them reach self-identified goals and aid in
overall succession planning.

Special Olympics Volunteers of the Month: August 2018
"The Special Olympics Colorado volunteers of the
month for August are Developmental Pathways! After
having been involved with the Plane Pull for many
years, their team decided to get involved with the
Young Athletes Camp this summer. Over the course of
the four-day camp, a total of 122 Developmental
Pathways volunteers came out to help with our
youngest athletes, aged 2-7.
A favorite part from the group was interacting with the
kiddos and being able to see them and their parents in a
different capacity than what they are used to.
Developmental Pathways is a Colorado non-profit
agency created to serve persons with intellectual and
developmental disabilities or delays (I/DD), and their
families. As an organization, they are committed to
enriching the lives of people with ID and Special
Olympics Colorado is thankful for their dedicated
volunteerism!”
Content written by Special Olympics

28

CHALLENGES
There are many challenges to serving the needs of people with I/DD in our area. We are actively addressing
many of these challenges through the initiatives supported by Board Designated Funds and legislative efforts at
the state and federal levels.

Cross Systems
Partnerships

Provider Capacity

We navigate many systems and silos, but they
can be confusing and complicated. We need to
continue to strengthen partnerships with
schools and other community resources to
make sure families are getting the most
current information to inform decision making
and planning for the future.

Youth Housing
Shortage

Existing rate structures make it difficult to find quality providers,
especially for those with high needs. Despite increases from the
legislature, provider rates for services have remained stagnant
and I/DD providers don’t have the diverse funding streams of
other healthcare providers to offset costs. Other confounding
factors include: an increasing minimum wage, high turnover,
increased oversight and training, and the need for more
individualized supports.

There are few housing options for children with a dual diagnosis (I/DD & mental
illness) who often need out of home placement beyond the foster care system.
The revision of the CHRP Waiver in FY19, including it's move to be administered
by CCBs will hopefully provide more stable housing options for youth with high
behavioral needs.

An Inclusive Theatre Experience
Phamaly is a theatre company comprised of all abilities. They wrote and
directed “Morph Masters: How disability made famous artists awesome!,”
which highlights famous artists of all abilities such as Stevie Wonder, Frida
Kahlo, & Beethoven. DP hosted two free showings that were open to the
public. For refreshments, Pathways partnered with a parent who started
her own allergy-friendly bakery, Wave the Grain, after learning that her
child with Down Syndrome could not eat gluten anymore. Dirt Coffee, an
inclusive coffee shop based in Littleton, provided beverages for the event
as well. Attendees remarked that the experience was “phenomenal…so
much love and honesty and information presented in a fun and loving
way.” One parent commented, “It was wonderful for my son to see selfadvocates do something fun and talk about disability in a positive way. My
son (14yo) doesn’t get many opportunities (not for lack of trying) to see
self-advocates doing everyday things and have positivity doing it. My son
hates his disability and this opened up his eyes just a little bit. Thank you
for hosting this. It was a great event! Keep it up!”
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CONCLUSION
Developmental Pathways meets the agreement requirements of the mill levy funding by:
Protecting & assisting individuals with intellectual/developmental disabilities in ways that
help keep families together.
Preventing the costly price of out-of-home placements.
Supporting adults with developmental disabilities.
Supporting infants with developmental delays.
Helping adults with developmental disabilities acquire employment & job training.
Providing day programs & other services to seniors with developmental disabilities so
working families can care for them at home.
Actively reducing the long waitlists of children & adults who need services.
Reaching out to the community to assess needs & connecting our individuals to new
resources.
Achieving these ends through existing county-authorized agencies.
Identifying unmet needs in the community & developing long-term solutions to meet those
needs or challenges.

Looking for more great stories? Find them here:

Check out
our website

Watch us on
Youtube

Like us on
Facebook &
LinkedIn

Follow our blog
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325 Inverness Dr. South
Englewood, CO 80112
info@dpcolo.org | 303-360-6600

Company Structure &
Mill Levy Breakdown
FY2019

Community Programs
Supported by DP
Day Program
Employment
Behavioral
Home & Community Support
Adult Residential
Transportation
*Community Outreach Partnerships
*Community Initiatives

Mill Levy Funds for FY2018
Arapahoe County

$10,471,690

Douglas County

$5,227,995

TOTAL

$15,699,685

Direct Services

$8,664,337

Case Management & PQ

$4,043,936

Community Outreach/FSSP

$2,028,718

Early Intervention

$75,423

Fund Balance

$818,631

Other

$68,640

TOTAL

$11,261,855

Admin Support
Total Revenue

$43,985,692

Management & General

$5,442,465

Depreciation Expense

($782,121)

Revised M&G

$4,660,344

Total Management &
General for All Companies
is 10.6% of Revenue
*Unaudited Figures

$1,382,567
$725,842
$129,868
$424,739
$5,472,433
$528,889
$2,028,718
$568,799

2019 Mill Levy

Funding Snapshot: Community Outreach Program

Our Community Outreach Program serves individuals & families with I/DD who have unmet or under-met needs. This
program was established with the passage of the Mill Levy with the goal of collaborating with community partners to
supporting folks waiting for more robust state or federal services. Community Outreach expenses fall in 3 general
categories as we leverage individuals, community organizations, and our own staff to provide care for more than 2,400
individuals and families each year.

Individual
Expenses

Community
Expenses

Respite Care
Professional Services
Medical & Dental
Transportation
Assistive Technology
Home Modifications
Parent & Sibling Support

Staff
Investment

Partnerships/Discounts for:

Daily support for families
On-Call Phone Support
Weekly resource newsletter
Emergency Support (food pantry &
baskets)
Facilitation of respite opportunities

Tutoring
Parent's Night Out events
Recreation
Respite
Event Sponsorships
Parent Trainings
Agency grants
Group services

$179,969

$251,810

$58,947

$34,386

$128,989

$159,801

39%

Douglas

42%

Douglas

37%

Douglas

61%

Arapahoe

58%

Arapahoe

63%

Arapahoe

$490,726
$323,176

TOTAL
Douglas

40%

60%

Arapahoe
* These are unaudited numbers
based on tracking by county

Detailed Data

Enrolled by Program

Arapahoe

Douglas

Other

Total

%
8.0%
18.6%
11.7%
3.3%
0.1%
10.2%
1.2%
47.0%

#
247
555
100
123
1
249
12
1358

%
9.3%
21.0%
3.8%
4.7%
0.0%
9.4%
0.5%
51.3%

#
55
73
166
7
0
94
14
206

%

CES
CO
DD
FSSP
OBSS
SLS
State SLS
EI

#
426
986
620
173
3
538
62
2492

Grand Total

5300

100.0%

2645

100.0%

615

Enrolled by Age

Arapahoe

Douglas

8.9%
11.9%
27.0%
1.1%
0.0%
15.3%
2.3%
33.5%

#
728
1614
886
303
4
881
88
4056

%
8.5%
18.9%
10.4%
3.5%
0.0%
10.3%
1.0%
47.4%

100.0%

8560

100.0%

Other

Total

0-3
3-6
6-14
14-18
18-21
21-30
30-40
40-50
50-60
60+

#
2500
443
697
260
229
426
352
177
115
101

%
47.2%
8.4%
13.2%
4.9%
4.3%
8.0%
6.6%
3.3%
2.2%
1.9%

#
1359
248
425
163
114
199
85
31
12
9

%
51.4%
9.4%
16.1%
6.2%
4.3%
7.5%
3.2%
1.2%
0.5%
0.3%

#
207
25
80
20
29
104
65
38
29
18

%
33.7%
4.1%
13.0%
3.3%
4.7%
16.9%
10.6%
6.2%
4.7%
2.9%

#
4066
716
1202
443
372
729
502
246
156
128

%
47.5%
8.4%
14.0%
5.2%
4.3%
8.5%
5.9%
2.9%
1.8%
1.5%

Grand Total

5300

100.0%

2645

100.0%

615

100.0%

8560

100.0%

Enrolled by Ethnicity

Arapahoe

Douglas

Other

Total

%
3.0%
2.6%
0.7%
12.4%
0.5%
14.3%
0.6%
1.6%
64.2%

#
110
105
7
91
12
136
5
49
2130

%
4.2%
4.0%
0.3%
3.4%
0.5%
5.1%
0.2%
1.9%
80.5%

#
12
9
3
87
1
162
10
10
321

%

American Indian/Alsk
Asian
Asian/Pacific Islander
Black
Hawaiian/Pacific Islander
Hispanic
Other Race
Unknown
White

#
159
138
36
659
27
759
34
84
3404

Grand Total

5300

100.0%

2645

100.0%

615

Enrolled by Gender

Arapahoe

Douglas

2.0%
1.5%
0.5%
14.1%
0.2%
26.3%
1.6%
1.6%
52.2%

#
281
252
46
837
40
1057
49
143
5855

%
3.3%
2.9%
0.5%
9.8%
0.5%
12.3%
0.6%
1.7%
68.4%

100.0%

8560

100.0%

Other

Total

Female
Male

#
1909
3391

%
36.0%
64.0%

#
958
1687

%
36.2%
63.8%

#
225
390

%
36.6%
63.4%

#
3092
5468

%
36.1%
63.9%

Grand Total

5300

100.0%

2645

100.0%

615

100.0%

8560

100.0%

Counts by Diagnosis
3-5 Developmental Delay
3-5 Established Condition
At Risk
Att Deficit Disorder
Autism
Brain Injury
Cerebal Palsy
Chromosomal
Abnormality
DD/Mental Illness
Developmental Delay
Down Syndrome
EI - Developmental Delay
EI - Established Condition
EI - Other
EI - Parent(s) DD
Fragile X Syndrome
Low birth weight
Maladaptive Behavior
Medically Fragile
Mental Retardation
No Identified Disability
Non Ambulatory
Non Mobile
Other
Other Neurological
Seizure Disorder/Epl
Significant Hearing
Significant Speech
Significant Vision
Grand Total

Arapahoe

Douglas

#
221
19
386
589
1736
130
637

%
1.3%
0.1%
2.3%
3.6%
10.6%
0.8%
3.9%

#

12
537
597
637
3487
451
78
13
49
143
231
96
2939
6
83
37
1166
337
890
217
480
246
16450

Other
#

93
11
166
270
818
41
194

%
1.4%
0.2%
2.4%
3.9%
11.9%
0.6%
2.8%

0.1%
3.3%
3.6%
3.9%
21.2%
2.7%
0.5%
0.1%
0.3%
0.9%
1.4%
0.6%
17.9%
0.0%
0.5%
0.2%
7.1%
2.0%
5.4%
1.3%
2.9%
1.5%

7
160
306
288
2012
231
27
10
28
64
48
41
889
13
22
9
451
123
273
81
139
59

100.0%

6874

Total

13
0
30
108
301
26
70

%
0.5%
0.0%
1.2%
4.4%
12.2%
1.1%
2.8%

#
327
30
582
967
2855
197
901

%
1.3%
0.1%
2.3%
3.7%
11.1%
0.8%
3.5%

0.1%
2.3%
4.5%
4.2%
29.3%
3.4%
0.4%
0.1%
0.4%
0.9%
0.7%
0.6%
12.9%
0.2%
0.3%
0.1%
6.6%
1.8%
4.0%
1.2%
2.0%
0.9%

2
167
83
70
315
27
5
3
12
10
57
18
606
0
23
1
179
68
125
25
105
22

0.1%
6.8%
3.4%
2.8%
12.7%
1.1%
0.2%
0.1%
0.5%
0.4%
2.3%
0.7%
24.5%
0.0%
0.9%
0.0%
7.2%
2.8%
5.1%
1.0%
4.2%
0.9%

21
864
986
995
5814
709
110
26
89
217
336
155
4434
19
128
47
1796
528
1288
323
724
327

0.1%
3.3%
3.8%
3.9%
22.5%
2.7%
0.4%
0.1%
0.3%
0.8%
1.3%
0.6%
17.2%
0.1%
0.5%
0.2%
7.0%
2.0%
5.0%
1.3%
2.8%
1.3%

100.0%

2471

100.0%

25795

100.0%

Monitoring and Service Plans
Type
Monitoring (I.E. initial, 3-month, and 6-month)
Service Plans (Enrollment and Annual)
Total Face to Face Monitoring and Service Plan Meetings

Human Rights Committee Reviews
Type
Psych Meds
Rights Suspension
Restrictive Procedure
Safety Control Procedure (SCP)
Incident Reports (SCP/ECP)
Psych Meds & Right Suspensions
Psych Meds & Restrictive Procedure
Psych Meds & Safety Control Procedure
Psych Meds, Right Suspensions, & Safety Control Procedure
Psych Meds, Right Suspensions, SCP, Restrictive Procedure
Right Suspensions & SCP
Follow-Up
Final Reviews
Investigations
No packet submitted (rescheduled)
Total Human Rights Committee Reviews

Mistreatment Investigations
Type
CCB Investigations
CCB Collaboration with Police
CCB Collaboration with Adult Protective Services
CCB Collaboration with Child Protective Services
Program Approved Services Agency Investigations
Total Investigations

Number
5108
2298
7406

Number
328
22
1
15
0
106
0
5
4
0
0
0
33
51
138
703

Number
7
47
5
3
20
82

Critical Incidents (info taken from Quarterly Deliverables)
Quarter
FY19 Totals
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

150
127
111
139

Total

527

New
Enrollments
CES
SLS
DD

FY11
15
14
21

FY12
14
32
15

FY13
21
34
45

FY14
163
37
69

FY15
148
259
76

FY16
183
173
67

FY17
116
132
91

FY18
106
114
85

FY19
146
119
159

50

61

100

269

483

423

339

305

424

Grand Total

Contacts
per
Month
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

Jul
28
53
108
123
110
175
154

Aug
41
42
80
153
160
195
205

Sep
28
43
122
131
126
139
166

Oct
28
70
139
125
123
191
209

Nov
22
70
108
110
123
161
137

Dec
26
63
125
126
113
127
115

Jan
29
134
124
123
128
166
213

Feb
45
89
168
129
177
180
180

Mar
53
100
183
163
176
175
205

Apr
69
132
133
127
146
153
197

Waitlist - All Timelines by
Age
0-3
3-6
6-14
14-18
18-21
21-30
30-40
40-50
50-60
60+
Grand Total

Waitlist - All Timelines by
Program

Arapahoe
#

Douglas
#

1
1033
572
558
265
449
218
74
48
24

%
0.0%
31.9%
17.6%
17.2%
8.2%
13.8%
6.7%
2.3%
1.5%
0.7%

3242

100.0%

Arapahoe

Other

Total

#

%

530
289
301
151
220
94
25
14
6

%
0.0%
32.5%
17.7%
18.5%
9.3%
13.5%
5.8%
1.5%
0.9%
0.4%

75
49
36
26
71
30
16
14
3

0.0%
23.4%
15.3%
11.3%
8.1%
22.2%
9.4%
5.0%
4.4%
0.9%

1
1638
910
895
442
740
342
115
76
33

%
0.0%
31.5%
17.5%
17.2%
8.5%
14.3%
6.6%
2.2%
1.5%
0.6%

1630

100.0%

320

100.0%

5192

100.0%

Douglas

#

Other

Total

DD
FSSP
SLS
State SLS

#
1183
1697
356
6

%
36.5%
52.3%
11.0%
0.2%

#
557
881
188
4

%
34.2%
54.0%
11.5%
0.2%

#
165
131
24

%
51.6%
40.9%
7.5%
0.0%

#
1905
2709
568
10

%
36.7%
52.2%
10.9%
0.2%

Grand Total

3242

100.0%

1630

100.0%

320

100.0%

5192

100.0%

Waitlist - As Soon As
Available by Age

Arapahoe

Douglas

Other

Total

%
11.4%
16.5%
9.6%
9.2%
37.7%
10.4%
2.9%
1.4%
1.0%

#
41
48
32
24
77
26
8
1
1

%
15.9%
18.6%
12.4%
9.3%
29.8%
10.1%
3.1%
0.4%
0.4%

#
1
6
2
1
21
13
5
1
1

%

3-6
6-14
14-18
18-21
21-30
30-40
40-50
50-60
60+

#
56
81
47
45
185
51
14
7
5

Grand Total

491

100.0%

258

100.0%

51

Waitlist - As Soon As
Available by Program

Arapahoe

Douglas

2.0%
11.8%
3.9%
2.0%
41.2%
25.5%
9.8%
2.0%
2.0%

#
98
135
81
70
283
90
27
9
7

%
12.3%
16.9%
10.1%
8.8%
35.4%
11.3%
3.4%
1.1%
0.9%

100.0%

800

100.0%

Other

Total

DD
FSSP
SLS
State SLS

#
275
200
14
2

%
56.0%
40.7%
2.9%
0.4%

#
121
132
1
4

%
46.9%
51.2%
0.4%
1.6%

#
41
10

%
80.4%
19.6%
0.0%
0.0%

#
437
342
15
6

%
54.6%
42.8%
1.9%
0.8%

Grand Total

491

100.0%

258

100.0%

51

100.0%

800

100.0%

Case Management
Early Intervention
& Quality
Assurance

Family
Support

Community
Outreach

Outsourced
Services & Youth
Housing

Initiatives

Purchase of
Services

Total Program

Fundraising and
Development

Administrative
Management
and General

Fund Balance

Total

State Contract Revenue, Part C, ARRA
Medicaid Revenue
Counties
Service Fees and Other Program Income
Public Support/In-kind - Contributions/Grants
Other Revenue:
Rental Income
Net Investment return
Interest & Other
Total Revenue by Funding

1,652,411
5,901,796
54,521
43,725
7,652,453

12,538,116
714,121
1,655,413
-

1,484,568
-

83,222
40,337

-

607,569
1,441,192
-

-

16,282,664
8,057,109
1,793,156
84,062

315,803

15,954

-

16,282,664
8,057,109
1,793,156
415,819

14,907,650

1,484,568

123,559

-

30,000
2,078,761

-

30,000
26,246,991

44,995
360,798

918,708
409,029
334,527
1,678,218

-

948,708
454,024
334,527
28,286,007

Mill Levy Revenue Applied

4,043,936

75,423

162,608

1,866,110

-

31,230

8,664,337

14,843,644

11,696,389

14,983,073

1,647,176

1,989,669

-

2,109,991

8,664,337

41,090,635

Total Expenses by Program

9,512,933

13,321,664

1,563,386

1,813,071

539,325

2,208,273

8,664,337

Gain/Loss on Disposal of Assets
Total Expenses and Losses

9,512,933

13,321,664

1,563,386

1,813,071

539,325

2,208,273

8,664,337

Total Revenue

-

37,410

818,631

15,699,685

360,798

1,715,628

818,631

43,985,691

37,622,989

136,523

5,442,465

-

43,201,977

37,622,989

136,523

5,442,465

-

43,201,977

Change in Net Assets

783,714

Management and General Calculation
Management and General
Less: Admin Depreciation
Revised Management and General

5,442,465
(762,383)
4,680,082

Total Revenue (including Mill Levy)

43,985,691

Management and General as a
percentage of revenue

10.64%

Less: Loss on Settlement
Less: Transfer of HUD entities

495,000
3,951,103

Change in Net Assets

(3,662,389)

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
Survey/Audit
Family Support Services Program Audit

Department
Community Outreach
Department

Division
Family Support Services
Program

Who
Division of Intellectual and
Developmental Disabilities (DIDD)

Community Outreach Program Satisfaction Survey Community Outreach
Department
Community Outreach
Feria de Recursos (Spanish Resource Fair) Family Department/Early
Intervention
Survey
Department

Community Outreach Department
Community Outreach Program Management
Family Support Services
Program, Community Outreach
Program, Early Intervention
Community Outreach Department &
Program
Early Intervention Department staff

Community Outreach
Department/Case
Management
Department

Waiver Programs, Family
Community Outreach Department &
Support Services Program,
Case Management Department
Community Outreach Program Management

Transition Fair Survey

Douglas County Respite Grant Reporting

Post Payment Reviews aka Payment Error Rate
Measurements (PERMs)

Community Outreach
Department

Case Management and
Program Quality

Community Outreach

Community Outreach Department
Management and Admin

Health Care Policy and Financing (HCPF)
and/or a 3rd party contractor

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
Survey/Audit

Department

Who

Division for Intellectual and
Developmental Disabilities (DIDD) a
Division under Health Care Policy and
Financing (HCPF)

CCB Performance Audits

Contract Deliverables for I/DD

Division

Case Management and
Program Quality

Division for Intellectual and
Developmental Disabilities (DIDD) a
Division under Health Care Policy and
Financing (HCPF)

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
Survey/Audit

Department

Annual Request for Proposal (RFP) Reporting

Case Management and
Program Quality

Conducted by Program Quality Dept;
Developmental Pathways

Office of the State Auditor (OSA) Survey

Case Management and
Program Quality

Conducted by the Office of the State
Auditor

CDHS EI Program Supervision

EI Colorado Family Outcomes Survey

Division

EI

CDHS EI Program

EI

CDHS EI Program

Who

They provide general supervision and
generalized and focused monitoring.
Annually

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
Survey/Audit

Department
EI

Division
CDHS EI Program

Who
Quarterly

EI

CDHS EI Program

Monthly

CDHS EI Quarterly Fiscal Reporting

CDHS Monthly KPI Reporting

Department of Labor and Employment Certificate of
Compliance

Properties

Department of Labor and Employment

Properties

South Metro Fire Department

HR

Benetrac

HR

Benetrac

HR
HR
HR

Internal
Internal
MSEC

HR

State of Colorado

HR

US Gov

Building Safety Evaluation

ACA- Employee Reports
ACA- Employer Reports
OSHA Posting
EEO- Filing
MSEC - Surveys (Salary, Benefits etc.)
CMS Medicare Survey
SS Survey

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
Survey/Audit

Department

401K Annual Audit

FIN

Division

Who
External Audit Firm (Eide Bailly)

External Audit Firm (Eide Bailly)

Financial Statement Audit

US Census Bureau Annual Services Report

FIN

US Census Bureau

US Cov

Colorado Department of
Human Services

External Audit Firm (Eide Bailly)

FIN

A-133 for Early Intervention

FIN

Colorado Department of Human Services EI Year End
Revenue and Funding Reporting

FIN

Mill Levy Report

FIN

Mill Levy Report

FIN

Colorado Department of
Human Services
Arapahoe County
Douglas County

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
Survey/Audit

Department

Mill Levy Agreed Upon Procedures (AUP)

FIN

Supported Living Services (State Program) Year End
Reporting of Unspent Revenue
Family Support Services Program Year End Reporting
of Unspent Revenue
Annual Financial Statement Audit Provided to HCPF

Division
Douglas/Arapahoe County

FIN

Colorado Department of Health
Care Policy & Financing

FIN

Colorado Department of Health
Care Policy & Financing

FIN

Colorado Department of Health
Care Policy & Financing

Properties

Building Division

Building Elevator Compliance
Pinnacol Assurance
Workers Comp Audit

FIN

Who

Douglas County

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
When
Unscheduled audits are completed by
the State. Last audit was completed in
March 2019.

Where

Annually, typically in June

DIDD requested specific information about all areas of FSSP
via e-mail. Information was sent electronically to the State.
Electronic surveys are sent to families via e-mail and hard
copies are sent by mail for families who do not have e-mail
access.

During/after the annual Feria in June

Paper surveys are handed out to families upon entering the
Feria

During/after the Transition Fair that
occurs annually.
Report submitted to Douglas County
January. Funds are spent during
calendar year.

Random schedule
(See what/why section)

Paper surveys are handed out to families upon entering the
Transition Fair. They will alternate between the Inverness
and Aurora offices.

Funds are distributed to families living in Douglas County

Post Payment Reviews are primarily desk-review type audits
completed by HCPF or a contractor based on information
provided by Medicaid providers

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
When

3 year cycle

Where

Performance Audits are completed on-site at each CCB's
administrative offices and also involve desk review activities.

On a schedule per fiscal year; generally Reporting is prepared by each CCB and sent to the
quarterly
DIDD/HCPF for review.

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
When

Where

Reporting and analytics are completed by the Program
Annually, between Sept and Oct for the
Quality department based on annual tracking on all RFPs sent
previous fiscal year
the previous fiscal year.

OSA audits are completed through a variety of desk-review
As determined by the state of Colorado and in-person surveys by state staff and/or a contractor

They monitor data and performance measures from their
location and also on site monitoring
Emails and mailings to families

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
When

Where
Quarterly and year end fiscal reports are sent via email with
follow up from CDHS EI Program staff if needed
Monthly reports are sent by CDHS EI Program staff. CDHS
staff also meet monthly to review state and individual CCB
performance. CDHS staff also follow up via phone, email or in
person to concerns.

Every two years

Onsite

Annually

Onsite

Spring 2019
Spring 2019
Spring 2019
Summer 2019
As Requested

As Requested
As Requested

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
When
Annually around June.

Onsite

Annually beginning in September

Onsite

Annually

Submit via internet.

Annually

Onsite

Annually
Annually
Annually

Where

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
When
Annaully

Where
Onsite

Annually

Annually

Annually

Annually

Onsite

Annually

Onsite

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
What/Why

Additional Information

DIDD did a comprehensive audit of the Family Support Services Program to
ensure guidelines were being adhered to across the State of Colorado.
We are seeking to evaluate the effectiveness and satisfaction level of the CO
program. Information is shared with our management team and the
Executive Team in a quarterly report.
We are seeking to evaluate the effectiveness and satisfaction level of the
Feria. Results are reviewed by Feria leads from Community Outreach and
Early Intervention Departments for future improvements.

Surveys are in Spanish

We are seeking to evaluate the effectiveness and satisfaction level of the
Fair. The Fair is geared towards individuals of transition age (and their
parents), between the ages of 16 and 22. Results are reviewed by leads
Surveys are in English &
from Case Management and Community Outreach for future improvements. Spanish
The final report is sent to Douglas County after all the funds are spent or at
the end of the calendar year. The final report also summarizes the amount of
funds spent by families and/or providers.
The Payment Error Rate Measurement (PERM) is an audit program
developed by the federal government. HCPF (or a contractor) will examine
eligibility decisions and payments to various providers for Medicaid services
across a variety of Medicaid programs. The reviews are based on a variety of
documentation providers must keep on file; the type of documentation
required is outlined in the Medicaid rules in the Colorado Code of
Regulations: 10 CCR 2505-10 8.130.2. Documentation may include copies of
service plans authorizing supports, copies of assessments, letters of
recommendation, invoices, attendance records, etc.

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
What/Why
When waiver operational and administrative functions are conducted by
contracted entities and/or local/regional non-state entities, the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) requires states to develop a plan for
oversight of the performance of such entities to ensure that waiver
requirements are met. One of the ways in which Health Care Policy and
Financing (HCPF) provides oversight over Community Centered Boards
(CCBs) is to complete the performance audits. This requirement is outlined
within the waiver document.
Historically, these performance audits have occurred approximately once
every three years. The next scheduled cycle for all twenty CCBs is fiscal year
2016-2017 through fiscal year 2018-2019.
Each year, each Community Centered Board (CCB) enters into a contract
with Health Care Policy and Financing (HCPF) in order to provide case
management, associated utilization review services, and other
administrative activities for both applicants of and individuals enrolled into
the following I/DD programs: HCBS-CES, HCBS-DD, HCBS-SLS, State SLS, and
Family Support Services Program (FSSP). The contract has a robust statement
of work attached in which CCBs are asked to both complete and report on
the commitments outlined therein.
On a set schedule, which is governed by HCPF, CCBs submit a variety of
contract deliverables to HCPF for review and validation. Reports sent to the
DIDD/HCPF for review include (but are not limited to):
1. Quarterly Reporting on critical incidents and critical incident trends,
complaints and complaint trends, and case management staff training
2. Long-range, closeout, communication, and business continuity plans.

Additional Information

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
What/Why
Each year, our Community Centered Board (CCB) commits to providing
reporting on Request for Proposal (RFP) outcomes for all individuals
receiving case management supports for the following programs: HCBS-CES,
HCBS-DD, HCBS-SLS, and State SLS. The reporting looks at the outcomes for
every single RFP sent and determines trends across outcomes (placed,
withdrawn, no placement found, etc.), as well as by program, and service.
The report gives specific information on how many RFPs were placed with a
commonly controlled entity as our case management department(s) and, in
recent years, has also provided some information on trends by city and zip
code. This report takes a 3-6 weeks to develop and is released annually to
all program approved service agencies (PASAs) in our catchment area and is
available on our website.
This report and all analytics are completed by the Program Quality
department based on work completed by the Case Management
department.
And audit was conducted in 2017-2018, pursuant to Section 25.5-10-209(4),
C.R.S., which requires the State Auditor to conduct, or cause to be
conducted, a performance audit of each CCB that receives more than 75
percent of its funding from governmental entities, to assess whether the CCB
sare effectively and efficiently fulfilling their statutory obligations. State
auditors worked with HCPF and leadership from Developmental Pathways to
gather data and complete an in-dept analaysis of work conducted and billed
for by CCBs. CCBs were presented with deficiencies for remediation, and a
final report was presented to the Legislative Audit Committee.
CDHS EI Program is the responsible for insuring compliance with Federal Part
C regulations as well as state focused systematic improvement.
EI Colorado Family Outcomes Survey - This survey is sent to all families in
service and asks them if they understand their rights, if the EI services helped
them understand their child's needs and if EI services helped the family help
their children develop and learn.

Additional Information

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
What/Why
Quarterly utilization report to measure fiscal compliance. CDHS EI program
staff monitor state and federal Part C funding utilization as well as Medicaid
use and Private Insurance utilization expectations.
Performance Indicators capture all of the activities used to meet Federal Part
C requirements as well as state systematic improvement plans. Some of the
key measurements are percent of infants and toddlers with IFSP's who
receive services on their IFSP's in a timely manner, percent of infant and
toddlers who demonstrate improved social emotional skills, acquistion and
use of knowledge and skills and use of appropriate behaviors to meet their
needs. Percent of all children who received timely transition planning prior
to existing Part C. CDHS EI Program also tracks and monitors any complaints
and their resolution.
The department inspects our boiler to ensure that it is operating safely and
up to code. They will supply us with a Certificate of Compliance when
complete. The inspection takes less than 30 minutes.
The fire department verifies that the company we hire to maintain our
system is inspecting and maintaining our fire alarm system and
extinguishers. Occasionally, they will do a walkthrough of the building and
ensure we do not have fire hazards and the alarm is up to code.
1095-C Employer Provided Health Offer and Coverage document to
employees
1094-C and 1095-C IRS Filing Transmittal of Employer Provided Offer and
coverage to IRS
Required posting of work place injuries
Required submission of employee demographics
Throughout the year, Mountain States sends us survey data requests to
gather salary, benefit and other employment data for their total rewards
survey results.
Throughout the year, CMS sends online requests to verify primary medical
coverage for employees.
Throughout the year, SS Administration sends requisitions for verification of
employment and salary for both persons in service and occasional
employees.

Additional Information

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
What/Why
Developmental Pathways has a consolidated 401K plan that is required to
have an annual audit by an independent auditor. Our 401K administrator
(Mass Mutual) supplies all the details of the plan for the calendar year to an
external audit firm to audit. A sampling of data is selected and tested by the
auditors for compliance. The audit typically lasts about 1 week and is
conducted at our office location. Once the audit is complete the form 5500Annual Return/Report of Employee Benefit Plan is filed with the IRS for the
previous calendar year.
Financial Statement Audit. Independent audit of financial statements is
performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. The audit is performed to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
Annual Services Report-questionnaire which discloses
financial/payroll/location information for different companies within the
Developmental Pathways umbrella. Information is used by US Government
for statistical purposes only.
A-133 Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
The results from the A-133 required for the Early Intervention Program must
be submitted to each nonfederal agency that passes federal awards through
to our organization. Email copy of the audit report including the Single Audit
section of the audit report.
EI Year End Reporting of revenue and funding.
Report to Arapahoe County to summarize all programs, the quality of
services and infrastructure that the Mill Levy supports.
Report to Douglas County to summarize all programs, the quality of services
and infrastructure that the Mill Levy supports.

Additional Information

Community Outreach Surveys and Audit FY 2016-2017
What/Why
Agreed upon procedures performed by external audit firm to review and
report on Mill Levy spending based on the procedures defined by the
Counties.
Supported Living Services (State Program) Year End Reporting of Unspent
Revenue.
Family Support Services Program Year End Reporting of Unspent Revenue.

As part of the Developmental Pathways DIDD contract we are required to
provide HCPF with a copy of the annual audit.
The department inspects our elevator to ensure that it is operating safely
and up to code. They will supply us with a Certificate of Compliance when
complete. The inspection takes less than 30 minutes.
Workers Comp Audit is performed to determine if premiums have been set
according to the experience rating plan approved by Colorado's
Commissioner of Insurance.

Additional Information

Temporary No Parking Zone SOP:
TEMPORARY “NO PARKING” SIGNS DETAILS
The physical characteristics of the Temporary “NO PARKING” Sign adopted by the Board of
County Commissioners is described herein. The Legend on the Temporary “NO PARKING” signs
shall state applicable regulations. Where parking is prohibited, at all times or specific times, the
basic design shall have a red legend and border on a white background, and shall meet the
retroreflectivity requirements in Table 2A-3 of the MUTCD (see attached Temporary “NO PARK”
sign). Signs should be mounted on a ridged backing. Temporary “NO PARKING” signs should
display the following information from top to bottom of the sign, in the order listed:
a) Arapahoe County Logo (for Road and Bridge Crews only)
b) Towing Company Name and Phone Number (per 723-6-6500, Towing Carrier Rules, of the
Rules Regulating Transportation By Motor Vehicle, Colorado Department of Regulatory
Agencies, Public Utilities Commission, Proceeding No. 16R-0095TO)
c) The Parking Restriction
d) The Days of the Week that is applicable, if not all days.
e) The Times of Day that it is applicable, if not all hours.
f) Specific Dates when the Parking restriction is in effect
g) Applicable Ordinance Number (for regulatory enforcement)
h) Arrows (discussed below)
If the parking restriction applies to a limited area or zone, the limits of the restriction should be shown
by arrows or supplemental plaques. If arrows are used and if the sign is at the beginning or end of a
parking zone, there should be a single-headed arrow pointing in the direction that the regulation is in
effect (← or →). If the sign is at an intermediate point in a zone, there should be a double-headed
arrow pointing both ways (↔).
When a single sign is used at the transition point between two parking zones, it should display a right
and left arrow pointing in the direction that the respective restrictions apply (↔).
Temporary “NO PARKING” sign supports should be constructed to hold the Temporary “NO
PARKING” signs in a proper and permanent position, 36 inches from the ground to the top of sign, and
should be crashworthy.
The Sheriff’s Office will be contacted during the first quarter of every the year to determine if the
County’s on-call towing company has changed. If towing companies have changed, then all the
Temporary “NO PARKING” signs will be changed to reflect the new companies name and phone
number before the signs are used in the field.
If the Temporary “NO PARKING” sign is modified from the description above, approval from the
Board of County Commissioners will be sought. When approval and Resolution Number of the
modified Temporary “NO PARKING” sign is obtained the old signs will be taken out of service and
recycled.

PLACEMENT OF TEMPORARY “NO PARKING” SIGNS
Temporary “NO PARKING” signs shall be deployed a minimum of 72 hours before the beginning
of construction activities and the anticipated days the parking restriction is in effect, shall be

posted on the Temporary “NO PARKING” signs. If construction delays force the need for the
parking restriction to be extended, the parking restriction dates shall be changed on the Temporary
“NO PARKING” signs to reflect the new time as soon as the change is known.
Temporary “NO PARKING” signs shall be placed at the beginning and end of the construction
work zone, and at intermediate points sufficient to control parking on the street. Spacing of
Temporary “NO PARKING” signs shall not be greater than 250 ft and should be reduced as
conditions warrant (i.e. high density street parking).
The placement of the Temporary “NO PARKING” signs shall be documented on the Sign
Deployment Verification Form (see below) and in the project field book by noting the location of
the sign(s) and the date and time the signs were placed. Photographs are also encouraged to be
taken that depict the location and time of the placement of the signs but should not take place of
field book documentation. Photographs should also attempt to document any noticeable existing
damage on vehicles, to include any fluids that may have leaked from the vehicle.
Temporary “NO PARKING” signs shall be deployed in a manner as to not unreasonably restrict
access either to private property or to public areas. When Temporary “NO PARKING” zones
conflict with dedicated business, on street parking spaces, alternate parking locations shall be
shown on the project MHTs.
Temporary “NO PARKING” signs shall be removed immediately from the street when the work is
completed or parking restrictions are no longer required.
Additional public notification of parking restrictions will be reviewed on a case by case basis for
each impacted area. For most locations:
a) NotifyMe forms should be completed and submitted to the Communication Department Liaison
for Public Works and Development 1 week prior to beginning of the work.
b) For Projects, that involve private contractors or in-house crews, when applicable, door hanger
notices shall be posted 72 hours prior to work beginning, per the contract documents.
For high impact areas, such as multi-family developments, churches, libraries and businesses,
additional public notification such as HOA emails, car flyers, and Variable Message Boards,
should be prepared.

ENFORCEMENT
Procedures for removing vehicles in established posted Temporary “NO PARKING” Zones are
discussed herein. When a vehicle is in violation of the Temporary “NO PARKING” zone on the
date and at the time depicted on the Temporary “NO PARKING” sign, the Project Inspector (with
Contractor PM if on a Contract Labor Project) or Road and Bridge Supervisor (Supervisor) shall
attempt to locate the owner of the vehicle by “door knocking” as reasonably practical at adjacent
houses/apartments/businesses near the vehicle, both sides of the street. If locating the vehicle
owner is not successful, the Project Inspector or Supervisor shall notify the Arapahoe County
Sheriff Office (ACSO) at the NON-EMERGENCY NUMBER – 720-795-4711, giving the

location and description of the vehicle, including color, make, model and license plate number,
asking that an Officer be dispatched to remove the vehicle.
The Sherriff’s Office reserves the right to respond to each violation in a manner that is determined
to best fit the situation.
When the Officer arrives onsite, the Project Inspector or Supervisor shall be prepared to present all
documentation pertaining to:
Completed form “Temporary NO PARKING Sign Deployment Verification and Other
Public Notification of Temporary NO PARKING Zones”
a) the deployment of the Temporary “NO PARKING” signs including the date and
time
b) Any other public notifications, such as NotifyMe, HOA email blasts
The Officer will attempt to locate the owner of the vehicle, and notify them of the intent to remove
vehicle from the work zone.
If the Officer is not successful locating the owner of the vehicle, the Officer shall contact the
contracted towing company requesting the vehicle be relocated or impounded using the towing
company the County has under contract.
The relocation tow will include the towing company, with reasonable care, removing the vehicle
from the Temporary “NO PARKING” zone to an adjacent area. The vehicle shall be placed along
a public road in a safe legal manner. The cost of the relocation tow will be paid by the County.
The impound tow will include the towing company, with reasonable care, removing the vehicle
from the Temporary “NO PARKING” zone to the towing company’s impound facility. The owner
of the vehicle will be required to retrieve the vehicle and pay for the impound fee before the
vehicle is released (per 723-6-6500, Towing Carrier Rules, of the Rules Regulating
Transportation By Motor Vehicle, Colorado Department of Regulatory Agencies, Public Utilities
Commission, Proceeding No. 16R-0095TO).
The Project Inspector or Supervisor shall remain with the Officer until the tow company has
finished removing the vehicle.
In addition, Project Inspector or Supervisor shall document:
a)
b)
c)

The events leading up to contacting the ACSO, and
The time the tow driver arrived and departed the site, and
Any other information that is relevant to the vehicle removal

Temporary NO PARKING Sign Deployment Verification
and
Other Public Notification of Temporary NO PARKING Zones
Date:
Project No:
Inspector:
Phone No.:
Work
Starts:

þ
þ
þ

þ

Contractor:
Project
Manager:
Phone No.:
Location:
Work Ends:

Temporary NO PARKING Signs Deployed. Date:__________________
(By Contract, 72 hours prior to work commencing)
Inspector Initials:___________
Door Hanger Notices delivered. Date:__________________________
(By Contract, 7 days prior to work commencing)
Inspector Initials:___________
Windshield Notices Placed on Vehicles parked in future NO PARKING
Zones. Date:____________________
(24 Hours prior to work commencing)
Inspector Initials:___________
Other Public Notification. Specify:_____________________________
Date:_______________________
(5 days prior to work commencing)
Inspector Initials:___________

ARAPAHOE COUNTY, COLORADO
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-xx
AN ORDINANCE TO ESTABLISH TEMPORARY NO PARKING ZONES TO CONTROL
AND REGULATE THE PARKING OF VEHICLES ON COUNTY ROADS IN AND
AROUND AREAS OF DESIGNATED ROAD OR RIGHT OF WAY IMPROVEMENT,
REPAIR, OR MAINTENANCE PROJECTS AND PROVIDING PENALTY PROVISIONS
FOR VIOLATIONS
WHEREAS, Section 43-2-110(1), subparts (a) and (b), Colorado Revised Statutes
(C.R.S.), require the Arapahoe County Board of County Commissioners (the Board) to
designate the primary and secondary roads in the unincorporated territory of the County and to
adopt, after public hearing, the official map of said roads as the County road system, and
Section 43-2-111(1), C.R.S., assigns the county road system to the county for construction and
maintenance; and
WHEREAS, Section 30-11-107(1)(h), C.R.S., authorizes the Board to lay out, alter or
discontinue any road running into or through the unincorporated territory of Arapahoe County
and to perform such other duties respecting County roads as are or may be prescribed by law;
and
WHEREAS, Section 42-4-110(1) authorizes the local authorities, such as the Board, to
enact and enforce traffic regulations on roads and streets within its jurisdiction; and
WHEREAS, Section 42-4-111(1)(a), C.R.S. allows local authorities, such as the Board,
to regulate or prohibit the stopping, standing, or parking of vehicles on roads and streets under
their jurisdiction and within the reasonable exercise of the local authority’s police powers,
provided that official signs or other traffic control devices conforming to and authorized under
state law standards, and providing notice of the regulations, are placed upon the roads so
regulated at appropriate locations; and
WHEREAS, Section 30-15-401(1)(i), C.R.S., authorizes the Board adopt an ordinance
to control and regulate the movement and parking of vehicles and motor vehicles on public
property; and
WHEREAS, Section 42-4-1813(2), C.R.S., authorizes any county to establish by
ordinance or resolution, procedures for the removal, storage and disposal of abandoned or
illegally parked motor vehicles; and
WHEREAS, through the explicit and implied powers provided by these statutes, the
Board is vested with broad authority over county road rights of ways, including the authority to
designate where on county roads it is illegal to park vehicles and to make provision for the
continued and proper improvement and maintenance of such road rights of ways; and
WHEREAS, the Board finds that motor vehicles that are parked in a manner so as to

obstruct County road construction, repair, or maintenance projects inhibit the performance of
work to perform and complete the projects and cause delays, increasing the cost of the projects
and thereby reducing the amount of funds available for other needed road projects, all to the
detriment of the traveling public and the taxpayers in Arapahoe County; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to the above recited statutory authority, the Board desires to
adopt an ordinance to establish that it is illegal to park on County roads at locations where such
parked motor vehicles interfere with or obstruct the performance of County road improvement,
repair, or maintenance projects, upon the posting of conforming and lawful signage to provide
notice of the project and that parking is prohibited at the specified location for the period
necessary to allow for the performance and completion of the project.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of
Arapahoe County as follows:

SECTION 1. APPLICABILITY
This Ordinance shall apply to those areas of County roads that are designated “Temporary NO
PARKING” zones by the Director of the Arapahoe County Department of Public Works and
Development as necessary to accommodate a County road or right of way improvement, repair,
or maintenance project and where so noticed by lawful signage posted in accordance with
applicable state law and regulation.

SECTION 2. TEMPORARY PARKING PROHIBITIONS
No person shall park a motor vehicle within any Temporary NO PARKING zone duly established and
posted pursuant to this Ordinance.

SECTION 3. ENFORCEMENT
The Arapahoe County Sheriff (and his Deputies) shall have the power to issue tickets and order
the tow and impound of motor vehicles illegally parked in any temporary no parking zone
established and posted NO PARKING with lawful signage in violation of this Ordinance.
SECTION 4. PENALTIES
A.

Any person who violates any provision of this Ordinance commits a Class B traffic
infraction under the Arapahoe County Model Traffic Code Ordinance as duly adopted
and in effect within the unincorporated territory of the County for a violation of Parking
Regulation 1204, Stopped/Left Standing/Parked Vehicle where Restricted/or Prohibited
By Signs or Markings.

B.

The penalty assessment procedures set out in § 16-2-201, C.R.S., shall be followed in
enforcing this Ordinance.

C.

All fines for violation of this Ordinance shall be paid to the Arapahoe County Sheriff’s
Traffic Violations Bureau Clerk, who shall deposit said fines into the Arapahoe Law
Enforcement Assistance Fund.

D.

In addition to the penalties prescribed above, persons convicted of a violation of this
Ordinance shall be subject to a surcharge of ten dollars ($10) that shall be paid to the
clerk of the court by the defendant as provided by§ 30-15-402(2)(a), C.R.S.
SECTION 5. INTERPRETATION

This Ordinance shall be so interpreted and construed to effectuate its general purpose to regulate the
parking of motor vehicles as and where necessary to eliminate interference with county road
improvement, repair, or maintenance projects in conformance with the State’s uniform system for
the regulation of motor vehicles and traffic and the Arapahoe County Model Traffic Code.
SECTION 6. SEVERABILITY
The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable. If any provision, clause,
sentence, or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person, establishment,
or circumstances shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions or
applications of this Ordinance.
SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE
This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after the final publication following adoption.

BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS
ARAPAHOECOUNTY,COLORADO

CERTIFICATE
It is hereby certified that the foregoing Ordinance No. _________ was introduced, read
and adopted on first reading at the regular meeting of the Board of County Commissioners of
the County of Arapahoe on ________________, (Resolution No. _______) and the same was
published in full in The Villager, a newspaper of general circulation published in Arapahoe
County, on September 27, 2012, and thereafter was adopted with amendments, on second and
final reading at a regular public hearing of the Board of County Commissioners of the County
of Arapahoe on ___________ (Resolution No. _______). Said Ordinance, following adoption,
was published in by title in The Villager on _______________. Said Ordinance went into
effect on _______________.

ATTEST: _________________________

________________________________
Jeff Baker, Chair

INTRODUCED, READ AND ADOPTED ON FIRST READING on ________
(Resolution No. ____________) and ordered published in full in The Villager, Greenwood
Village, Arapahoe County, Colorado.
ADOPTED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING on _____________ (Resolution No.
________) and ordered published in by title in The Villager, Greenwood Village, Arapahoe
County, Colorado.
Date of publication after adoption: ______________ .
JOAN LOPEZ
CLERK TO THE BOARD

TEMPORARY NO PARKING
ORDINANCE
TEMPORARY NO PARKING STUDY SESSION
4/21/20
JIM KATZER – TRANSPORTATION DIVISION, PWD
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OUTLINE
• Goal of Ordinance
• Brief History
• Current process
• Direction from the BOCC
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GOAL OF TEMPORARY NO PARKING ORDINANCE/SOP

Ability to perform planned construction work in the
County’s right-of-way when work is scheduled

3

BACKGROUND
• Recognize Road and Bridge
• Construction phase
• Public ROW maintenance
• Crack seal, concrete repairs, patching, paving
• Obstructions on the street
•
•
•

Slows progress
Effects both in-house crews and contractors
Cost the County money
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BACKGROUND
PWD partnered with the Sheriff’s Office
Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) was created
which addressed:

• Notifications to the public
• No parking zone setup
• Violators

• Roles of all parties
• Removal of obstruction
5

CURRENT PRACTICE
As of April of 2019
• The SOP is being followed by PWD and SO
• Despite this Obstructions still occur
• Obstructions are being removed per CRS 42-4-1803(2)
•
•
•

Relocation tow

No Impounding unless other violations exist
No Ticket issued unless other violations exist

• Current practice has shown good results
• County bears the cost of the tow and the liability
6

CONSTRUCTION EXAMPLE
• Alton Way Concrete repairs
• Notified 3 days in advance
• 9 cars were towed
• 4 Impounded (expired tags, etc.)
• 5 Relocation tows

• $534.00 in towing bills
• Varies by year

• Only two minor construction delays!
7

ESTABLISH TEMPORARY NO PARKING ORDINANCE
Proposal to follow the Temporary No Parking Ordinance

• Public Works and the Sheriff’s Office will follow SOP
• Obstructions will be removed per the Ordinance
• Impound tow, zero cost to the County
•

Cost per year $1000 to $1,500

• Reduced towing liability
• Ticket can be issued (if desired, SO could still relocate tow)
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SUMMARY FOR DIRECTION
Remove Obstructions by:

• Following CRS 42-4-1803(2)
• No ticket, relocation tow paid by the County, County liability
• $1,000 per year for towing

• Follow Temporary No Parking Ordinance
• Ability to ticket and impound tow
• Revenue would be minimal
9

QUESTIONS

Input from the BOCC

10

Study Session: April 28, 2020

Board Summary Report
Date:

April 20, 2020

To:

Board of County Commissioners

Through:

Don Klemme, Director, Community Resources

From:

Linda Haley, Housing and Community Development Division Manager

Subject:

Allocation of Community Development Block Grant – COVID-19 (CDBG-CV) funds
received as part of the CARES Act.

Direction/Information
The purpose of this Board Summary Report is to review the funding recommendations for
Community Development Block Grant – COVID-19 (CDBG-CV) funds, as recommended by Community
Resources - Housing and Community Development Services (HCDS) staff, and seek direction from the
Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) regarding the plan to utilize these funds. We are also seeking
authorization to submit amendments to the 2019 Annual Action Plan to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD) for review and approval.
Background
Following the passage of the CARES Act, Arapahoe County and the City of Centennial will receive an
additional allocation of CDBG funds (CDBG-CV) to assist with preventing, preparing for, and responding
to coronavirus/COVID-19. Combined, Arapahoe County and City of Centennial will receive a total of
$869,861 in CDBG-CV funds from the CARES Act. Of the total, Arapahoe County will receive $657,432
and the City of Centennial will receive $212,429.
In order to access these funds and award grants to community service providers as expeditiously as
possible, HCDS staff is seeking direction from the BOCC, to include the plans for CDBG-CV funds in the
2019 Annual Action Plan, as a substantial amendment. By including the CDBG-CV funds in the 2019
Action Plan, these funds can be awarded and allocated to entities responding to the COVID-19 pandemic
as quickly as possible given the current situation and programmatic guidelines.
Under normal circumstances and program requirements, only 15% of CDBG funds can be awarded to
public services each grant year. However, given the circumstances and urgent needs, HUD has waived
the 15% cap on public services for the supplemental CDBG-CV funds. This waiver provides additional
program flexibility for funding a wider range of activities to respond to COVID-19 needs.
Based on the entitlement allocations, Arapahoe County has up to $525,945.60 and the City of
Centennial has up to $174,191.78 to award to eligible projects, including public services. These figures
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are based on the standard deduction for program administration costs of 20% for Arapahoe County and
18% for City of Centennial.
Discussion
HCDS staff is recommending the following funding allocations for Arapahoe County’s CDBG-CV funds:










$200,000 – Emergency Rent/Mortgage/Utility Assistance
o Administered in-house by HCDS staff in conjunction with also providing additional rental
assistance through the Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) program.
$150,000 - City of Aurora - Quality Inn Homeless & COVID-19 Housing
o Joint project between the City of Aurora, Adams County and Arapahoe County with
additional community partners to provide safe housing for the homeless population
coming out of the hospital, recovering from COVID-19, or those that are symptomatic
and need to be isolated. Our current IGA is for $100,000 but in the event this
agreement needs to be extended we felt that setting aside these funds now would be
the prudent option. If they are not used for this project, we will address moving them
to another area of need in the future.
$125,000 – Emergency Food Assistance
o Support to local non-profits addressing the needs of residents through food banks and
meals on wheels programs.
o Initial recommendation is to divide the $125,000 amongst 3-5 organizations to reach
different vulnerable populations.
o To include, but not limited to: Integrated Family Community Services (IFCS), Project
Angel Heart (PAH), TLC Meals on Wheels dba Nourish, Aurora Interfaith Community
Services (AICS), Littleton Life Center, and GraceFull Café.
$25,000 – Health Care
o Support to health care agencies to address the growing demand and need for health
care coverage information, enrollment and services.
o Likely to support Doctors Care
$25,000 – Emergency Housing (Hotel/Motel Vouchers)
$131,486.40 – Program Administration
o A portion of the administration funds will be used to support two new grant funded
positions to assist with administering the CDBG-CV funds and the CSBG funds, including
a focus on the in-house Emergency Rent/Mortgage/Utility assistance program and
Emergency Housing program for hotel/motel vouchers.

The City of Centennial is a separate entitlement community, which is administered by Arapahoe County
HCDS staff. The City of Centennial’s City Council has approved the reallocations of CDBG funds
previously earmarked and approved for public facility/infrastructure projects, as well as the CDBG-CV
funding allocations presented below:
HCDS staff is recommending the following funding allocations for City of Centennial’s CDBG-CV funds:



$100,000 – Emergency Rent/Mortgage/Utility Assistance
o Administered in-house by HCDS staff, but strictly limited to City of Centennial residents.
$74,192 – Emergency Food Assistance
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o



Support to local non-profits addressing the needs of residents through food banks and
meals on wheels programs.
o Initial recommendation is to divide the $74,192 amongst 2-3 organizations to reach
different vulnerable populations.
o To include, but not limited to: Project Angel Heart (PAH), TLC Meals on Wheels dba
Nourish.
$38,237.22 - Program Administration
o A portion of the administration funds will be used to support two new grant funded
positions to assist with administering the CDBG-CV funds and CSBG funds, including a
focus on the in-house Emergency Rent/Mortgage/Utility assistance program and
Emergency Housing program for hotel/motel vouchers.

HCDS staff is also recommending the following reallocation of City of Centennial’s CDBG funds
previously approved for a public facility/infrastructure project that was to be determined:




$75,000 – Emergency Food Assistance
o Additional support to local non-profits addressing the needs of Centennial residents.
$100,000 – Emergency Rent/Mortgage/Utility Assistance
o Additional support to residents to provide rent/mortgage/utility assistance to
Centennial residents
$61,221 – Health Care
o Additional support to health care agencies to address the growing demand and need for
health care coverage information, enrollment and services.

* HUD has issued a waiver for the 15% public service cap, which allows for the proposed reallocation of
funds to public services activities.
Links to Align Arapahoe

CDBG funds link to Align Arapahoe in each of the three goals, Service First, Fiscal Responsibility
and Quality of Life. By design, the CDBG program and our funding decisions start with analyzing
the needs of the community and providing goods, services and housing that are consistent with
those needs of our residents and communities. Through our funding awards, Arapahoe County
is demonstrating a commitment to providing quality services to our residents. By awarding
CDBG funds to entities who complete community development projects, Arapahoe County is
making a responsible fiscal impact that addresses the needs of our communities and residents
and demonstrates our role as good stewards of public funds. The overall goal of the CDBG
program is to develop viable communities and support low- and moderate income residents,
thereby improving our residents’ overall quality of life.
Alternatives
The BOCC may recommend an alternative distribution of funds.
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Fiscal Impact
The CARES Act CDBG-CV funds are allocated by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Therefore, the allocation and use of these funds will not impact Arapahoe County

general funds.
Attorney Comments
Reviewed By:
Liana Escott, Community Development Administrator
Jeremy Fink, Community Development Administrator
Linda Haley, Housing and Community Development Division Manager
Don Klemme, Community Resources Department Director
Janet Kennedy, Finance Department Director
Tiffanie Bleau, Assistant County Attorney

